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CORPORATE PROFILE
DRI

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

The Company was spun-off from Man Sang International Limited and listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by way of
introduction on 17 October 2014 under the stock code of 1466.
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The Group is one of the world's largest merchant, purchaser and processor
of pearls. The processing and production of pearls and jewellery are
conducted at the Group's production facilities in Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities so arising
in order to maximise shareholders’ value in the coming future.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FEBKRE
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3IHLEE
Consolidated Income Statement &R 2016 2015 Change
20164 2015%F B %
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FHT) 210,019 270,709 (60,690) (22.4)%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ERM(FHET) 59,196 108,028 (48,832) (45.2)%
(Loss)/profit before income tax MRErERIRT(ER) %A
(HKS'000) (F&7T) (10,858) 16,049 (26,907) (167.7)%
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable  ZNEEE A RIRE fE(L (E51E),~
to equity holders of the Company A (FHT)
(HKS'000) (10,940) 10,056 (20,996) (208.8)%
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings FRERNEE(EE)
per share (HK cent) B GEL) (4.05) 378 (7.83) (207.1)%
As at 31 March
M3A31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet HEEERER 2016 2015 Change
20165 20154 25 %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFAE(TET) 313,657 267,598 46,059 17.2%
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000) IR& MERIRE(FHIT) 163,931 76,486 87,445 114.3%
Bank borrowing (HK$'000) RITEE(FET) - 45,200 (45,200) (100)%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) iR R iR (FATT) 313,657 267,598 46,059 17.2%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FEHBKLE R
2016 2015 Change
20164 20155 28
Gross profit margin® FEFI=O 28.2% 39.9% (11.7) percentage points
MNEBEDE
Return on equity® f& R & & B3R (3.5)% 3.8% (7.3) percentage points
73MEE D2
Current ratio (times)® meEntkE(fF)oe 12.9 32
Gearing ratio® BRBRELERS - 0.17
M Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the Group. M EFEIEAREBEFBRAMA -
@ Return on equity is defined as the ratio of profit attributable to equity holders of the Q BREREEEREARRFIRRESRTBRARA AR
Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. RIEIGHEME -
3) Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities. ?3) ML RIE R EEBERIARE B ELEE -
(@) Gearing ratio represents total borrowing, including current and non-current portion, 4 BRAEEXREEERE(BERBRIERBIHS)

divided by total equity. FRIA MR 2 o
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2015/2016
2015/2016 F KERHE

29 May 2015-1 June 2015 201585 4298 £2015F6 A1H
Participated in JCK Show - Las Vegas, the United States SHCKERN T EINITRE R
25-28 June 2015 20155F6 H25 A &E28H
Participated in June Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair ZENABBUSTENEES
27-30 July 2015 201597 A27&308

Participated in Macao International Gem Fair 2015 ZERPRREA BTk - B0 RIKERE2015
16-22 September 2015 2015F9 A 16HE22H
Participated in September Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair ZENABBUSTEHEES
20-24 November 2015 2015511 H20R E24H
Participated in Style Hong Kong Show in Zhengzhou SHLEER MR — B
26-29 November 2015 20154F11 H26HE29H

Participated in JMA Hong Kong 2015 2EEERRYEREREEe




Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show

RN EBBRKRER

20-23 January 2016
Participated in 27th International Jewellery Tokyo

1-7 March 2016
Participated in Hong Kong International Show 2016

17-24 March 2016
Participated in Baselworld 2016 — World Watch & Jewellery Show
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Highlights of the Year 2015/2016 (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results of
Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 ("FY16").

RAANBHARREZSSHREARELERAR QA
(TERRA)EEWNBAR(HEIRER ) EHE
2016F3 A31HIEFE([2016FMBFE ) E




PERFORMANCE

The Group focus on the purchasing, processing, designing, production and
wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

It is a challenging year for the Group as the demand of high-end fine
jewellery and pearls was reduced by the downturn of global economy,
especially in Europe and several Asia countries which are key markets
we operate. Such decrease has an adverse impact on our financial
performance. The Group's revenue decreased by HK$60.7 million or
22.4% from HK$270.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 ("FY15")
to HK$210.0 million in FY16, while the gross profit decreased by HK$48.8
million or 45.2% from HK$108.0 million in FY15 to HK$59.2 million in FY16.
The Group recorded loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$10.9 million and basic loss per share of 4.05 HK cents in FY16, which
was a significant decline as compared to a profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$10.1 million and basic earnings per share of
3.78 HK cents in FY15.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, we believe 2016/2017 would be a challenging year
for pearl and jewellery processors and merchant. A modest recovery is
expected to be continued in the US market while it will still be challenging
for the European markets. The consumption sentiment is expected to
remain weak in the PRC and Hong Kong. Given the above challenges, the
Group will devote efforts on cost control measures and develop customers
in new markets to maintain our overall performance.

APPRECIATION

I 'would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their long-
term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would also like
to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group for their
dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR D

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016 ("FY16"). During FY16, the consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$10.9 million (year ended 31 March 2015
("FY15"): profit of HK$10.1 million), representing a decrease of 209% as
compared with that in FY15. Basic loss per share was 4.05 HK cents (FY15:
earnings of 3.78 HK cents), representing a decrease of 207% as compared
with that in FY15.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the downturn of global economy has reduced the
demand for pearl and jewellery products, especially in Europe and several
Asia countries which are key markets we operate. The revenue generated
from customers in these regions reduced in the year.

The Group has established a prestigious showroom (the “VIP showroom”) in
our headquarters in Hong Kong to showcase and to demonstrate our fine
jewellery to target high-end boutique retailers and wealthy individuals in or
visiting Hong Kong through connections established via major trade shows
and exhibitions and personal connections of our sales and management
team. There was also a weakening consumption sentiment in the PRC and
Hong Kong which has an impact on the sales contribution from the VIP
showroom (FY16: HK$14.4 million, FY15: HK$21.2 million) during the year.

To strengthen our financial position and reduce operating expenses, the
Group has disposed of two wholly-owned subsidiaries, which provide
residence to our Chairman, for a cash consideration of HK$55.7 million
during the year (the “Disposal”). The Disposal has been completed in
September 2015.

The Group has expanded to designing, processing and wholesale
distributing diamond and gemstones jewellery by establishment of two
new subsidiaries (each in Hong Kong and Panyu) with a new team of sales
executives, designers and goldsmiths, whose efforts will focus on exploring
new markets to expand the Group's clientele in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and overseas. The two newly established subsidiaries
contributed revenue of HK$9.4 million during the year. However, they
recorded a loss of HK$6.1 million during the year because the new team
is in early operating stage with a higher set up cost. The Group has also
entered into a cooperation agreement with a renowned gold jeweler to
expand its sales of pearl jewellery in Shenzhen.

BRRE

REHREERBERAR( AR NESS([ES
CRAZBAR R REMB AR (HBI A%
B D#EZE2016F3A318 LFE([2016F 8 B F
B ZELE - R016FHHERERN - AREIRE
FE(L 43R4 518 10,900,00058 7T (B 201553 A31
BIEFE([2015F B BEE ) : /& F)10,100,0007%
TL)  B2015F B RFE T #K209% o FARERE
B A405BN(2015FFBEE « BF3.7884)
82015 F BB E T #R207% o

E g E)

FA - 2REERREBHDREKREERZLE
KTk LHESEZEMETEMSEMNRE
MNZB - RAFRAREZFHREFS 2 WS B

AEBEEEEBRIRLERBEEZRINE(E
ERHE])  MEBFEREEIRELBEEZ
BEEEERn T ek ERHEE R ELE
ANBRZBEBIDEES IR IEEHKRE - FA -
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PSIT  2015F BB E ¢ 21,200,000/ 7T) ©

BIEAEE 2 BB MEELSERE - K&
B 2 AN F A LAIR £ X {855,700,000/8 7T B K
AEFEREEM2HBAR(THESEL - 15
FIECN2015F9 A 5ERK ©

AEBEFBONERSREBNLMEITHEB R
A EHRESZEORBAKREZRT M
TRHLESS  WKZAEEETHRAER - &3
& FAEKZHEK - ENREHME - Bk
BAREBHEAREIME(HE]) REIINEF
AR o ZMRHKLMBRRFAERBAB
9,400,000/ 7T + B G NEE15E51E6,100,0008 7T
RERILFEBENFHEEREMAZRSH
MY EBR  AEETHAZESHERRILAE
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The continuous surge in the operating expenses in the PRC including but
not limited to wages and material costs has an adverse impact on our profit
margin. The Group is implementing cost control measures to maintain its
competitiveness in the market. As part of the reorganisation in April 2014,
the operations of two of the factories have been transferred to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group in the PRC. During the year, the Group has
transferred the operation of the remaining factory to that wholly-owned
subsidiary.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently is principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue reduced during the year (FY16: HK$210.0 million; FY15: HK$270.7
million). With the increasing market competition and challenging
macroeconomic conditions, the Group has recorded a decline in sales in
Europe, North America and Asian countries.

Gross profit decreased by HK$48.8 million or 45.2% to HK$59.2 million
(FY15: HK$108.0 million). The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in
gross profit margin during FY16 (FY16: 28.2%; FY15: 39.9%). The decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the deeper discount offered
to customers, the increase in labour cost in our manufacturing facilities in
Shenzhen and the decrease in retail sales from the VIP showroom during
the year.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

(the “S&A expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$9.3 million (FY15:
HK$11.1 million) and administrative expenses of HK$69.0 million (FY15:
HKS$81.2 million). S&A expenses decreased by HK$14.0 million or 15.2% to
HKS$78.3 million (FY15: HK$S92.3 million) in FY16, as a result of the one-off
and non-recurring listing expenses in the previous year, netted off by the
increase in expenses of two newly established subsidiaries in Hong Kong
and Panyu.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company decreased by
HK$21.0 million or 208.8% to HK$10.9 million (FY15: profit of HK$10.1
million) in FY16 mainly due to the decrease of gross profit of the Group
and the operating loss of HK$6.1 million by the two newly established
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Panyu.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN R LN (E)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations through a combination
of cash generated from operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company and issue of new shares. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s total
equity was HK$313.7 million (2015: HK$267.6 million), representing an
increase of 17.2% from last year mainly because the Company has alloted
and issued 53,200,000 shares at the placing price of HK$1.05 per share on 8
March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$163.9
million (2015: HK$76.5 million). Cash and bank balances were mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. The Group's working capital or net current assets were HK$304.0
million (2015: HK$170.5 million). The current ratio, represented by the
current assets divided by the current liabilities, was 12.9 (2015: 3.2).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's total borrowing, which was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, was HK$45.2 million and was interest-bearing at
HIBOR +1.9%. The Group's borrowing reduced to nil as at 31 March 2016.
The Group does not currently use any derivatives to manage interest rate
risk.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had available banking facilities of HK$85.0
million (2015: HK$125.2 million) with a bank, of which the unused banking
facilities amounted to HK$85.0 million (2015: HK$80.0 million). With the
committed unused banking facilities in place and available cash and
cash equivalents, the Group has adequate financial resources to meet
the anticipated future liquidity requirements and capital expenditure
commitment.

The Group's borrowing and banking facilities as at 31 March 2015 were
secured by certain leasehold land and building with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$95.0 million. The pledge on these leasehold and building
were released during the year.

Capital structure

During the year, a total of 53,200,000 new shares were allotted and
placed to not less than six independent third parties at the subscription
price of HK$1.05 per share. The net proceeds from the subscription are
approximately HK$54,365,000. The Company intends to use the net
proceeds from the subscription to enlarge its capital base, increase
the Group's general working capital and/or other potential business
development opportunities as considered appropriate.

RBEESRESER

FR - AEBBBEEMSRS  ARFHEA
JEEEERBETHRMDAEGEREES - B
20165F3A31H » NREB R 4313,700,00078 70
(20154F : 267,600,000/ 7T ) + BEF EFF17.2%
TERRAKRRQANR2016F388H N EBER
10578 o Be 8% N B51753,200,0000% f% 1

M2016F3A318  AEBEFRS RRITER
163,900,000/ 7T (20154F © 76,500,000/ 7C) ° W&
MRITHEBEZEUNET BT RARKEFE -
AEEEEE ©IOFMENE E /304,000,000 7T
(20154 : 170,500,000/ 7C) © FE L KR (BNRENE
ERLUREBE)B12.9F (20155 : 321%) °

201553 A318 « REBEATEZFTEEE
4R £545,200,0008 7T + REBIRITRIZEREMIO
EstEEE - R20165F6 A30H - AEBEERSE
T AEBEINSEFERERITETATERNE
[R\fg: o

MR2016F3A31H + XEBEERITREZERE
B 58 ¥ /485,000,000 7T (20154F : 125,200,0007%
TT) - R MRS A 2 R1T{E E58E £85000,000
A IT(2015%F © 80,000,000 7T) ° 5t M B A HE B
RITEEREEURERE S AERRSE AEH
ERRZUBERENARRERZREESF K
REARR T A -

AEB01F3A31BZ2EERBITEEEEMN
ETHEDERSEEMEELAER  LEERES
95,000,000/ 7T - ZEHEYWHENEF 2 HHNE
RIfERR o

BERER

FN - A 53200000 RN EILREESRK
1058 TTRBEREE FTALPRANBELE=F -
R EIE 2 T8 3B FRE 40 554,365,000/ 7T © 7N
RNEBEFEARESHENAERIRFERERR
AER  WNAEEZ —REBEEE R HEA
ez BB EEREE -



Major disposal and connected transaction

During the year, the Group disposed the entire issued shares in and
the shareholder’s loan due by Man Sang International Holdings Limited
and its subsidiary to Chairman of the Company at a cash consideration
of HK$55,665,000. Man Sang International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary have one major asset, which is a leasehold property. The
disposal constitutes a major transaction and a connected transaction of
the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The disposal was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on
18 September 2015 and completed in September 2015. Details of major
disposal and connected transaction are provided under note 9(b) to the
consolidated financial statement of this annual report.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC
China. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations from various
currencies, such as United States dollars and Chinese Renminbi, which
were the major foreign currencies transacted by the Group during FY15
and FY16.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group has subsidiaries
operating in the PRC, in which most of their transactions, including
revenue, expenses and other financing activities, are denominated in
Chinese Renminbi.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may use
hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to manage
its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total workforce of 472 (2015:
521), of whom 50 (2015: 53) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff
cost, including directors’ emoluments and mandatory provident fund,
was approximately HK$62.6 million (2015: HK$61.6 million). Employees
were remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end discretionary
bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions and individual
performance.

Annual Report 2016 F 3R 15

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB EOM(E)

BEALERBERZEE

FR - REB 556650008 TZRERBHER
ERBERERARRENBAR Z 20 8T
BHREBRRERTFARRER - REBIBRIER
ERAGRENBARE—BEELE  BI—H
EWE ZHNETEBENEBHARIMERA
AEFLEMRAUNBETARBZEAR S RBER
5 o ZHEEHEDR2015F9 18 H BT 2 ARAQF]
fRERIFRIR e FIEM R AAE - WER2015F9H5E
K o EAME REER S EEFBHNNFRER
A WwEM D) ©

P =% Bh 3 b
AEBFEEFBRPELEERS - NEBAT
ETLRAREZINE ZHNEIE R &) - REER
2015 FFFE R2016FHBRFEEBRA Fill
HNEEHETTRZ ) ©

MRE T R ETTINERL E B E A RSB REX -
AEEY BASEREARTINERR - NEE
EMBARRTEZE  KBIRFZ(BFEEA
X REMBE RS AAREE -

AEEEBRIERIEELSD - ERAINE
AR - AT E S (R EONE & 0B T
HTA - AERESNERMS -

ADEIR

M2016F3 A31 8 + NEBFEEAH4724 (20154 -
5218 ) EE - EF50%& (20156 : 538 EETER
BIVE - BRETHA(BIEEEH I EAHED
&) 4 7562,600,0007% 7T (20154 © 61,600,000%
TL) c BEZHMIDIARE v RIBRERBELE -
HNAES (BREFERFERIBIEL) RIZ2B TN
METERIRREE -



16  Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited RAEHKEZRER AT

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN R LN (E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's management reviews the Group's internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. They have determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is principally
engaged in purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products. Information reported to
the Group’s management for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses on the operating results of the Group as
a whole as the Group's resources are integrated. Accordingly, the Group
has identified one operating segment — pearls and jewellery operating
segment, and segment disclosures are not presented.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Business and Financial Risks

(i) The profitability and financial position may be materially and
adversely affected if any of our major customers ceases their
business relationship with us; and

(i) The business and financial position may be materially and adversely
affected if there is a global economic downturn.

Operational Risks
Higher labour costs and labour shortages could have a material and
adverse impact on the Group's operation and profitability.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to promoting an environmentally conscious
work place and aims and places significant emphasis on minimizing our
environmental impact and to create a more sustainable future for future
generations.

Our production operations are carried out by the production facilities of Hui
Bao Feng Jewellery (Shenzhen) Limited (“HBF Jewellery”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary, in Shenzhen, is subject to certain PRC environmental laws and
regulations. The primary waste generated from our production processes
is waste water, which is treated in compliance with the applicable PRC
environmental laws and regulations. To ensure the operation of HBF
Jewellery is in compliance with the applicable environmental law on an
ongoing basis, we have entered into a waste water treatment agreement
with a qualified water treatment company which is responsible for
collecting the wastewater in the production process.

HBF Jewellery has been compliant with all relevant PRC environmental
related laws and regulations in all material respects during the year.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEABERE

CHAIRMAN

Mr. CHENG Chung Hing, aged 55, is a non-executive director and the
chairman of the Company. He provides leadership to the Company, and,
with the support from other members of the Board, is responsible for
the formulation and development of corporate policies and business
strategies of the Group. He was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong 1997" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the
“Distinguished International Entrepreneur of the Year Award 1997” by San
Francisco State University and the “Chinese Outstanding Entrepreneur
Award 2008" by the China Enterprise Confederation and the China
Enterprise Directors Association. He is currently a standing member of the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and a member of the Shenzhen Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, vice chairman of
the China Chamber of International Commerce, honorary life president of
the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association Limited, foundation
honorary chairman of the Gem and Jewellery Committee of China General
Chamber of Commerce and honorary chairman of the Zhejiang Pearl Trade
Association. He has over 30 years of experience in the pearls and jewellery
business.

Mr. Cheng is currently a co-chairman and executive director of China
South City Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1668)). Mr. Cheng ceased to be a non-executive Chairman of
Man Sang International Limited (“MSIL") (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 938)) on 16 October 2014. Mr. Cheng was also a
director of China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company listed on NYSE
MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) from September 1995 to December 2013. Mr.
Cheng is a brother-in-law of Mr. Chen Zhi Wei.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXNeREEABRE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YAN Sau Man, Amy, aged 53, is an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. She, together with other members of
the Board, is responsible for the overall management of the Group as
well as the formulation, development and implementation of the Group’s
corporate policies, business strategies and overall sales and marketing
strategies. She has involved in implementing the sales and marketing
strategies of the Group. Ms. Yan has over 25 years of experience in the
selling and marketing of pearls and she also has extensive experience in
the jewellery business. Ms. Yan is currently the Honorary President of Hong
Kong Pearl Association and Shenzhen Pearl Industry Association and the
Director General of Tahitian Pearl Association Hong Kong. Ms. Yan ceased
to be an executive director of MSIL on 16 October 2014.

Mr. CHEN Zhi Wei, aged 53, is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
procurement and assisting the Group’s sales team on the pricing of the
Group's pearls. He joined the Group in January 1998 as a procurement
manager and has since then developed his experience in pearl
procurement related to the pearls and jewellery business. He has
developed close working relationships with many pearl suppliers which
enable the Group to build up a strong and reliable supply network. He has
over 16 years of experience in the pearl business. He is a brother-in-law
of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing. Mr. Chen resigned as executive director of the
Company on 11 April 2016.

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 37, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
form the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr. Leung
had worked in two international accounting firms from December 2000
to February 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounting and a member of the CPA Australia. He has
more than 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate
management. Mr. Leung is currently an executive director, the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of MSIL. Mr. Leung was
appointed as executive director of the Company on 11 April 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Yat Sang, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 26 September 2014. He has over 30 years of financial
management experience and held senior management positions in
various multinational corporations in Hong Kong, Australia, Thailand and
China. Mr. Fung obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from Hong
Kong Polytechnic in 1976. Mr. Fung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in United Kingdom and a member of
the CPA Australia. Mr. Fung ceased to be an independent non-executive
director of MSIL on 16 October 2014.

Mr. LOOK Andrew, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non —
executive director on 26 September 2014. Mr. Look has over 20 years of
experience in equity investment analysis of Hong Kong and China stock
markets. He served as managing director and head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product at UBS AG from June 2000 to August 2008. He was
an investment manager at Prudential Portfolio Managers (Asia) Limited
from late 1994 to early 2000. He was responsible for corporate finance
from August 1990 to late 1994 as an investment manager at Lai Sun
Development Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 488). He was an investment officer at Hang Seng Bank Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 11), from August
1986 to June 1990. Mr. Look founded Look’s Asset Management Limited,
a Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong licensed corporation
based in Hong Kong, in September 2009, and currently serves as its chief
investment officer and managing director. He obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce from the University of Toronto in June 1986.

Mr. Look is currently an independent non-executive director of Citic
Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1205), Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1446), Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 822), and
TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2618).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXNeREEABRE(E)

Mr. TSUI Francis King Chung, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 26 September 2014. He has extensive experience
in financial advisory services, investor relations, corporate restructuring,
direct investment and business development consultancy. His experience
with listed entities include serving as director to Man Sang Holdings Inc.,
a company whose shares were listed on the American Stock Exchange,
from 2006 to 2009, and China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the NYSE MKT (ticker symbol: CNR), since 2009. China Metro-Rural
Holdings Limited was the successor of Man Sang Holdings Inc. pursuant
to a reorganisation in 2009. He also served on the audit committee of Man
Sang Holdings Inc. and China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited. Since 2000,
Mr. Tsui has founded and served as the President and director of DMC
Investment Co. Ltd., a private investment company in Hong Kong active
in direct investment. From 2007 to 2011, he was the President of Asian
Outreach International. Currently, he serves as the Chairman of the Board
of AsiaCMS Berhad headquartered at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. Mr. Tsui
received his Bachelor of Arts and M. Phil. from the University of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TSE Chi Keung, aged 35, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Accounting degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. Mr. Tse worked in
Ernst & Young in Hong Kong before joining the Group in July 2014. He
is responsible for the financial and accounting management, corporate
governance affairs and merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr.
Tse is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
management.

EZHRLE  BEFESE N2014F9A20HEER
FRBUIFNTES - EMBERRY - 188
EWR AREE EEREREREBRRZEHRA
AHBELEERH - MELTRATNEREE  ©
20064 Z 20094F HH f£Man Sang Holdings Inc.(J& 5
EEERZ M ETH—RARNES * I 82009
F 8 ) fF China Metro-Rural Holdings Limited ( 7£ 4%
HBHR TS LT —RAT - REBH
CNR)BIESE o IRIBEF2009F KIEAH + China Metro-
Rural Holdings Limited &Man Sang Holdings Inc. &4
EAE] o b JFHEEMan Sang Holdings Inc. &2 China
Metro-Rural Holdings Limited M) B ZZ B €K 8
B 20006 JAZR - B 5T 4 B Al I — B #E £ DMC
Investment Co,, Ltd.(—FIERN BN EEHENE
BRARERE)NBEHRES - #£2007F %2011
F -+ b A Asian Outreach International B £ & ° B
A - fth 45 £ 42 F06 7R 55 2R A o6 & BE 3 &9 AsiaCMS
Berhad MEZEE G X fE - EXAERBFEBREXE
TN ERE BT o

SREEAR

HEMEE HF3 ALKEZEHERUEA
EERARME B ER2005FERBETIRE
MBSt E+ 80 o FE2014F7AMAKRERE 2
AT HAESRE KRS MBS - #itE
BEAEBENTBREFER  DETREER
WA ES - StEATBSHII eSS -
FCENERT ST R EEEFBIEI0FE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ iz g
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of achieving the
highest standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders,
and the board of directors (the “Board”) is fully committed to doing so.
The Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect
stakeholders” interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Director(s)"), the
Company has complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and, where appropriate, the
applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2016. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required to
notify the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the
Securities.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE(E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The management team is delegated with the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management of the
Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include (1) the preparation of interim and annual
reports and announcements for the Board's approval before publishing;
(2) implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and (3) compliance with relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and rules and regulations. It is the responsibility
of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each Director with various
professional qualification, experience and related financial management
expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the Company and
provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard to the interests
of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board believes that
the current Board composition satisfy the balance of expertise, skills and
experience to the corporate governance requirements of the Group as well
as the ongoing development and management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely Ms. Yan
Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Leung Alex, one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing (Chairman) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis King
Chung.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company's interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.
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Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings to comply with
all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to Directors at least three days before the
intended date of a Board meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to Directors for their comment before being tabled at the
next Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, all Directors appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and
Senior Management set out on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and the chief executive officer (the
“CEQ”") is Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO
of the Group are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business
strategy and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities,
provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The CEQO is
accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of the Company’s
strategies and the co-ordination of overall business operations.
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TEERRE(E)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors, including Non-Executive Directors, appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Moreover, all Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a term of three
years expiring on the earlier of either (i) the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company in the year of the third anniversary of
the appointment or re-election of that Director, or (ii) the expiration of
the period within which the annual general meeting of the Company
is required to be held in the year of the third anniversary of the
appointment or re-election of that Director and in any event, subject to
earlier determination in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company and/or any applicable laws and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis
King Chung in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
Executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent within
the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware
of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe that the
independence of any of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has
been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures of the
Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the
Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and skills. The
Company has also provided reading materials to all Directors to develop
and refresh their professional knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in October
2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diversed
Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will also take
into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 6 Directors, amongst
them, 3 are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterized by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
gender, age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been met.

Annual Report 2016 F3f 25

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE(E)

ARBEFEREFTRERRAR - RAUKARTE
ZIERTREHEM I ARFRZBEELHE
ZIRE AR BERREII REEEATER
ERNEXERRAELANE - UEREAHE
EERRMB LI - ARRITTAEBEFREM
BIREMEL - DATBR RIRE R E 2 ERAE

EEERESTEE

EZECMN04FI0ARMEZTEXNEZ TILR
RAIBK))  EFIIHEZTEREREETENE
ZI LRI T8 ©

ARARRRALEREEZTILESTEKRENE
@ YRREFEREEBHEARZTTIARRE
B B R R AR EEROERITE

ARBBBREHEFTENEZTILEERRZS
A= - BFEIRNA 6 - &6 - &k BUIE
KA - RRRTETAEE BEAGMEHEA
LABERZ -EFEMEZETHURAERSTBR
A WHEZEBAERRARBHRERIBERESS
B Z T bryEs

RARERH - EXSheUESFHENX - B3
RBMIFITES - APEBRT RERERERE
Freo TamEtER] - Filk - EXELR - BRERAE
- BEEETHRAEZTERKEARX

REMBRMNEFTSHEREK  REREERA/E
FTEBRMER



26  Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited R4 KB IZR AR LD 7

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Pursuant to the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference, the Audit Committee is authorised to commit Company
funds in order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis
King Chung. Mr. Fung Yat Sang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings to review the interim and the annual results before their
submission to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members
of the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis
King Chung, 1 Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, and
1 Executive Director, namely Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy. Mr. Look Andrew is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in
the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in note 32(a) to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with specific
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst
other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and succession
planning for Directors and making recommendations to the Board in
respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis
King Chung, 1 Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Chung Hing, and
1 Executive Director, namely Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy. Mr. Tsui Francis King
Chung is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and concluded
that members of the Board has possessed the expertise and independence
to carry out the Board's functions and responsibilities.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2016 are set out below:

Annual  Extraordinary

General General

Meeting Meeting
Name of Director ESHE BRATAE RREIAE
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing NS N 01
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy HAZ/NE 1/1 11
Mr. Chen Zhi Wi REEEE 11 01
Mr. Fung Yat Sang R 11 1/1
Mr. Look Andrew BER A 11 1/1
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung BSR40 4 1Al N
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2016, and of
the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and ensured the
preparation of the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all

information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out as follows:

Friz R BR %

Services rendered

Audit of financial statements EBZIISHRE
Review of interim results EPHES
Other non-audit services H A IEEZARTE
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of
such internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions for the year under review and up to the
date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Chi Keung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since December 2014. He is a full time employee of the Company and has
adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Tse reports to the Chairman of the Company
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
For the year under review, Mr. Tse has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Law Cap. 22
(Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law"), registered shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to
convene a SGM at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered
Office”), which is presently situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The SGM
Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of the SGM and
such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the
SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share
Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company
Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance with all
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the
SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM Requisitionists
will be advised of the outcome and a SGM will not be convened as
requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a SGM provided
that any SGM so convened is held within two (2) months from the date of
the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM so convened by the SGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals
at a General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Company’s bye-laws or the Companies
Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph. Shareholders can also send enquiries and
proposals putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at shareholders’
meetings to the Board in writing to the Hong Kong office of the Company
whose contact details are as follows or directly by raising questions at the
general meeting of the Company.

Suites 2208-14, 22nd Floor
Sun Life Tower, The Gateway
15 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company's share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its customer
service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir-hk@man-sang.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, there are no changes in the
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website.

By Order of the Board
CHENG Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors (the “Director(s)") of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 8 to 9 and Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 16 of this Annual Report.

The capital risk management and financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are shown in note 5 and note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 54 to 111 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on page 5 of
this Annual Report.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental issues and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 16 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 31
of this Annual Report.

The Company'’s key relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers and business associates that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends are shown in the
Management Discussion and Analysis under “Human Resources” section
on pages 10 to 16 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to
31 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 46 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

The register of members of the Company (the “Shareholders”) will be
closed from Friday, 19 August 2016 to Tuesday, 23 August 2016 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 23 August 2016 (the "2016 AGM"),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2016 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 August 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’'s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, as at 31
March 2016 amounted to HK$308,619,000 (2015: HK$262,564,000), which
represented the retained earnings/accumulated losses and share premium.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

On 22 February 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
the placing agents in relation to the placing for an aggregate of 53,200,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the placing price of HK$1.05 per share
(the “Placing Shares”). On 8 March 2016, the Placing Shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a placing price of HK$1.05 per share to
certain investors for aggregate placing proceeds totalling HK$55,860,000, of
which HK$532,000 were credited to share capital and HK$55,328,000 were
credited to share premium. Transaction costs in relation to the placing of
HK$1,495,000 were debited to share premium.

The net proceeds from the Placing are intended to be used for enlarging its
capital base, increasing the Group’s general working capital and/or other
potential business development opportunities as considered appropriate.
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BORROWING

Borrowing repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the borrowing are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 112.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
Mr. Leung Alex
(appointed as executive director on 11 April 2016)
Mr. Chen Zhi Wei
(resigned as executive director on 11 April 2016)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fung Yat Sang

Mr. Look Andrew

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Leung Alex and Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Executive director Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Chen Zhi Wei have
respectively entered into a service contract commencing from 1 October
2014 with the Company for a term of three years. The service contract
may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the service
contract. Mr. Chen Zhi Wei resigned as an executive director on 11 April
2016.

Pursuant to the service contract, the term of appointment of Mr. Cheng
Chung Hing as a non-executive director is three years commencing from 1
October 2014.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed pursuant to
the respective letters of appointment for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 October 2014.

None of the directors of the Company has entered or has proposed to
enter into any service contract with the Company or any member of
the Group other than contracts expiring or terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 164(1) of the Company's bye-laws, the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy throughout the year, which indemnifies against
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by the
directors in the execution and discharge of their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 17 to 20.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been entered
into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group's businesses.

As disclosed in the listing document of the Company dated 30 September
2014 (“Listing Document”), the Controlling Shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Document) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 26
September 2014 in favour of the Company. The Company has enquired
with the Controlling Shareholder, from time to time, on whether he or any
of his associates has engaged in any business in competition with principal
business of the Company. The Controlling Shareholder has provided
the Group with written confirmation that he and his associates (other
than members of the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-
competition throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an annual
review on the Controlling Shareholder’'s compliance with the deed of
non-competition, and are not aware of duly breach of the deed of non-
competition by the Controlling Shareholder during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 17 October 2014. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Options”) shall not in
aggregate exceed 26,632,116 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the date the shares of the Company commence trading
on the Stock Exchange. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company (and to which the provisions of chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the
Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to
each eligible participants (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
Options) under the Share Option Scheme in any 12 month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the
eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant an option to
the eligible participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company at an
exercise price and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to certain restrictions contained in the Share Option Scheme, an option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the applicable
option period, which is not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of option. There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to such conditions,
restrictions or limitations including (without limitation) those in relation
to the minimum period of the options to be held and/or the performance
targets to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The Board confirms that the Share Option Scheme is in compliance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No option had ever been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were set out
below:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

EERRE RS ER

R2016F3 8318  EERARE) S E TR E
B (RS KB G ([ 3E 5 RS EM ) EBxvEl
MTPRRE) 2D - BEROIESPESR ()R
BESMBBEEROIEXVIE 7 RESN IR TEA
BAARNAR R (BEREES KAEEGE
BRETESWRIER B ZERZLAE)  H(b)
RIE 5 5 K HA S (510 553526 B E A K G DI Fr g &Y
Erift s sk(oRE ETRAMES T2 ETARE
FETEFR HEESTR([ZESFR ) BNE
RNE LB R em AR &SN T

(a) REQAEBERZHER

Number of ordinary shares

of HK$0.01 each held

FEAEREEIEBTZEBRHYE

Name of director Capacity

EEns 5%
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing

Beneficial owner and interest of
a controlled corporation

/N EnlEA A RZIE LB ER
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy Beneficial owner
BAEZ/NAE EmEEA

Note:

These 93,756,331 shares of the Company were directly owned by Rich Men
Limited, where Mr. Cheng Chung Hing owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Rich Men Limited.

EEfER
68,354,690

Percentage of

the issued
Direct Deemed Total share capital of
interest interest interest the Company
IEARRQF]
BIE EBITRE
BEEER s Bk
93,756,331 162,111,021 50.74%
(Note)
(Bf=E)
3,600,000 = 3,600,000 1.13%
FEE :

Rich Men Limited B 545 93,756,331 IR AR A RIAR %
T 286 47 B 4% A= B A5 Rich Men Limited B9 B 2 17 I AX
100% ©



(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the

Company

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2016, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors have taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Same as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or a
short position in any share or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

(b)

Annual Report 2016 3 39

Report of the Directors (Continued)

BEEERE(AE)
RABHEBERGZEFR

Br g EESN - R2016%3 8318 - e
R EB R AR R H T RFEEE A E (%
BHELHEEMNEXVIE TR RE) 2%
7~ HEERMD EFTHEE IRIEES &
EIEBIEXVERE 7 R BN B2 IR EBME A
DRI R (BIEREESRPERNE
BRE TESHRARBZERNAR)
(D) IRIEFEH M BB GO E35216B8 A%
IEBIFTHE MM ¢ SRR BAZESTRIZAMN
FNNCTINE I 2 a0 97y

BRAREE i SRR - EARRES
T BITHA BRAR B E A ERRE
B (& R B LB RPIEXVER) A EM AR
AR OHEEES  FRDLALR
AIREE S KA IRPIE2FBFENE
ROk 2 IRIBARE T RIS TT A G AN A 7] Rt
RFTEVER SRR ©

EZREROSES 2ER

AR E SRR T LEET T

REBARNRABRNDREFMER 2 EN - RI1TE
ZEREN - AR B SKEAEANE R B RERT L
ERRFRSCESARGEMEMEARRZZ

FHER



40  Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited RAEZKEZER AR L T

Report of the Directors (Continued)
BFgREE)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as the directors are aware, the following persons
(other than the directors or chief executive of the Company), were directly
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or short positions in the
shares and the underlying shares of the Company, which are required to
be disclosed under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which will be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.01
each held
FiRESREE
0.0138 T2
ZRERHE

Name of shareholder Capacity

RREME 8

FERRzHESZER

R2016%3 8318 » BESA » LTAL(ERR
RIEB T BITHABBRINRER RGN RAEE
A% o B 2 S R R 5% ak A ZBAR IR B 5 R A
EIEBIEXVERSE 2 K37 BRI T LA FE sl IR 15 75
% & BB E 161 5533616780 AR IGFT i & RE AV AR
DIKRBIWT -

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARAF]

2 BTRA
3873 Bok

Long/short
position

Rich Men Limited Beneficial Owner 93,756,331 Long position 29.34%
BHEERA "R
Ms. Ong Ying Lai (Note) Interest of spouse 162,111,021 Long position 50.74%
Rt (i) [y e Ha
Note: Mi%E

Ms. Ong Ying Lai is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and is therefore deemed interested in
all the shares of the Company held/owned by Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (by himself or through
Rich Men Limited) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, immediately following the listing of the Company,
the Company has not been notified of any person (other than Directors
or chief executive of the Company) or entity had an interests or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2016.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence of
all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the auditor, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March 2016
contributed by the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

= the largest supplier 16%
- five largest suppliers combined 41%
Sales

- the largest customer 15%
= five largest customers combined 38%

None of Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information

of the Directors since 31 March 2015 are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Mr. Chen Zhi Wei Resigned as executive director of the Company
on 11 April 2016.

Mr. Leung Alex Appointed as executive director of the
Company on 11 April 2016.

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing Agreed to waive emoluments of HK$1,250,000
voluntarily.

Mr. Look Andrew Appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Citic Resources Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1205) on 1 September 2015

Save for information disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float since the Listing Date and up to the date of this Directors’
Report under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2016.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are provided under note 33
to the consolidated financial statement of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016

Annual Report 2016 F3f 43

Report of the Directors (Continued)
ExgwmE(E)

B BT
M RREMERRAER M EBHEL - K
BREERFBFAS DRERF A ARERE

B o
BE BEOmHE LTRSS

AR FIRE AR A DB ERE201653 731
AL FERME - S REE AR AE LS
o

CEAKEE

EERARBREFHBENAF RS MEHRME

BRAARREREAFERALNFHRABDEE
LR

LN
FE

& 20165F6H27H



44  Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited RAEHKEIZRER AT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAN SANG JEWELLERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Sang
Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 46 to 111, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other (loss)/gains — net

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to equity
holders of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 54 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

WA
HEKAR
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Hith () A —F 88
S P X R A
HERX
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LE(BR),EF

5 es
BATERRAR

BATERRAS — 38R

BRATISBLAT (B51R), 5 F
PSR X

EATRREEFE
(E518), A

RATRREEZR
(&1]) BF

EANEE

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A31ALEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET T
7 210,019 270,709
10 (150,823) (162,681)
59,196 108,028
9 (1,397) 813
9 9,943 -
10 (9,294) (11,095)
10 (69,010) (81,214)
(10,562) 16,532
23 123 517
23 (419) (1,000)
(296) (483)
(10,858) 16,049
12 (82) (5,993)
(10,940) 10,056

13
HK(4.05) cents /B{]  HK3.78 cents /&1l
F4E 1N B ARG E M BHRER BB -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZHEWER

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A318LEFE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE(E8B), = F (10,940) 10,056
Other comprehensive (I0ss)/ income: Hth2mE(E8) e

Item that may be reclassified to profitorloss — AJGEEFT 5 4H 2872 THH

Exchange difference on translation of IR INERS 2 W =58
foreign operations (1,052) =
Item that will not be subsequently RETEeEM 7 EEBm s B

reclassified to profit or loss
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HETHREFALEIEE -
building, net of deferred income tax MriEIE TS A5 58 3,686 5574

Other comprehensive income for the year, AREEH 2R - BT F5E

net of tax 2,634 5,574
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income REFARNBIIRRIENM
for the year attributable to equity 2E(ER),WaiaE
holders of the Company (8,306) 15,630
The notes on pages 54 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated FOARNNBZW B EMISmR 2 BB -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERER

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited B4 BB ZRAR LD 7

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Bank borrowing

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Net assets

BERAE
FRBEE

VE R Y B
BRFOR
EEFSHEE

FBEE
i

R 0 A B
HeREARS

REBAE

JE A5 B R N B At FE A5 AR R
ISR AE
RITEE

REBEEFE

REERRBAR

FRBEE
EEFREHRAR

EEFE

15
18
16

17
18
19

20

21

5,075 101,881
3,534 6,810
1,090 742
9,699 109,433
102,491 99,837
63,182 72,738
163,931 76,486
329,604 249,061
23,938 29,386
1,708 4,015

= 45,200
25,646 78,601
303,958 170,460
313,657 279,893
- 12,295
313,657 267,598
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
IREEERERE)

As at 31 March
MA3A31H
2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

EQUITY RS

Equity attributable to equity holders  Z</\ 5] R EEFE(L#E 25
of the Company

Share capital (&N

Reserves e

Total equity BRER

The notes on pages 54 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 111 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2016 and
were signed on its behalf by:

Cheng Chung Hing
1N

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

FERIFPITEE

22 3,195 2,663
310,462 264,935
313,657 267,598

FARNB MBS E VSRR BB -

FAE 1N AFSES A M B REREN201656A27
AES=eERTRETR YA TIIESRE

®E

Yan Sau Man, Amy
mEX

Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GREERBER

Balances at 1 April 2014 R014E4 818 2 Bth
Profit for the year REERA
Other comprehensive income: Hin 2 EEs
Increase in fair value of leasehold RELHREFALE
land and building, net of deferred B BEEREH
income tax et

Total comprehensive income for the year A& 2 F s 458

BIEDRREMERTT

Deemed distribution and capitalisation

Issue (note b) (Fitsto)
Release of property revaluation reserve  HE T REFHER
upon depreciation of leasehold land BB Sl

and building

HREANRTIRH8E

Total transactions with owners

Balances at 31 March 2015 20153 A31B 2 5

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARREEL
Retained
eamings/
Property (accumulated
Share Share Other  revaluation  Translation assets)
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (note a)
RBEH/
LS (R5tEE)

RAx  ROEE  ERE  EfEE ERES (Ffsta) @zt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T TET THT Tir T THr T

- - 10 52,839 (170) 346,182 398861
- - - - - 10,056 10,056
- - - 5574 - - 5,574
= = = 5574 = 10,056 15,630
2663 280483 (10) - - (430,029) (146893)
: . - (1,299 - 1298 -
2663 280483 (10) (1,298) - (428731) (146,893)
2663 280483 - 57,115 (170) (72493) 267,598
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (gontinued)
REEmgHRE)

Balances at 1 April 2015 0154 A 18 2 B4 2,663 280,483 57,115 (170) (72,493) 267,598
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - = (10,940) (10,940)
Other comprehensive income: A2 EES -
Exchange difference on translation BERINER VB AR
of foreign operations - - - (1,052) - (1,052)
Increase in fair value of leasehold RETHRETARE
land and building, net of 2{E - BREEREH
deferred income tax ek - - 3,686 - - 3,686
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEELAEREAE - - 3,686 (1,052) (10,940) (8,306)
Release of property revaluation resenve  TE T+ RIETHER
upon depreciation of leasehold land EEmEEhEE
and building - = (1,413) = 1,413 =
Transferred from property revaluation HENBRARKENE
reserve to retained eamings upon EffRHERN
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) R (Fi559) - - (59,388) = 59,388 ~
Issue of placing shares, BIRERD - MERH
net of share issue expenses (Note 22) BR% () 532 53,833 - - - 54,365
Total transactions with owners R NETZR SR 532 53,833 (60,801) - 60,801 54,365
Balances at 31 March 2016 R20165F3 4310 2 s 3,195 334,316 - (1,222) (22,632) 313,657

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAARRELR

Retained
earnings/
(Accumulated
losses)
(notea)
REEH/
(RitE#R)
(Wzta)
HK$'000
TEL

Property

Share Share revaluation

premium

Translation

capital

reserve reserve

ES
Eftfite
HK$'000

TR

e
HKS'000
TR

R&viaE
HK$'000
TER

B
HKS000
TR

st
HKS'000
TR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
REEREHRE)

Note:

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years)
as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions
to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company
is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus reserves, and
before distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue
the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more
than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations,
or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a company may make further
discretional contribution to the surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance
with resolutions of the board of directors.

On 10 October 2014, 266,321,063 shares were issued to Man Sang International Limited
("MSIL") by way of capitalising the amount due from the Group to MSIL of approximately
HK$283.1 million (the “Capitalisation Issue”). The Capitalisation Issue was made for the

purpose of effecting the MSIL Distribution (see below) to MSIL.

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the Company’s share on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Consequently the
condition for the special interim dividend declared by MSIL on 26 September 2014 for
the purpose of the Reorganisation was satisfied by the Capitalisation Issue (the "MSIL
Distribution”) and the MSIL Distribution has accordingly been completed.

Deemed distribution represents the total consideration of approximately HK$430 million
payable by the Group to MSIL for the transfer of the related assets and liabilities of the

pearls and jewellery business under the Reorganisation.

The notes on pages 54 to 111 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/ Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Financial income
Financial costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before working
capital changes
Change in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Trade and other payables
Amounts due from the former ultimate
holding company

Cash used in from operations
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash used in
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries

Amounts due from related companies

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

REXBELECHERE
BRPrS AT (E518) i A
BTSRRI Z %
BTSN
Bk )
M - BERREITE
HEHB AR 26T
ﬁgﬁi@% BB KR

i

FRAS SR B EL A R ARSK

we MIANKIA

JEA & ok K B A5 AR R

FEWREE N B 2 5B

REXBERAZRE
EfFE
EATRTSR

REXBERZ
BREFE

REFHELXHLHE
BENE - Bk LB
HENS  BERS

e A

BILFIS

S N2

B om A EE
pel Bl A R B

RETHEL (A2
REFE

mﬂﬁ%ﬁ]&iz}ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ
ZITIREFTSFRIE
Eﬁ&{a =i

METHEL (A2
REFE
RERSRBESEM

(RD) F8
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PE R ighS)) v 220

FRZBERERRE

The notes on pages 54 to 111 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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LV

Year ended 31 March

BE3A31ALEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(10,858) 16,049
(123) (517)
419 1,000
4,042 5,098
(9,943) -
6 198
(16,457) 22728
(3,481) (21,555)
8,645 (5,079)
(5,772) (3,467)
— (3,142)
(17,065) (10,515)
(419) (1,000)
(2,902) (962)
(20,386) (12,477)
(586) (5,003)
76 21
123 517
55,148 -
e (72,767)
54,761 (77,232)
54,365 -
(1,000) (2,400)
53,365 (2,400)
87,740 (92,109)
76,486 168,595
(295) -
163,931 76,486
1B 2K AGa sk 2 BEIS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR R MR

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

(a)

(b)

General information

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) are principally engaged
in the purchasing, processing, designing, production and
wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
May 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17
October 2014.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion
of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) as described
below, the pearls and jewellery business (the “Business”) was
principally conducted through Arcadia Jewellery Limited
("Arcadia HK"), Man Sang Jewellery Company Limited (“Man
Sang HK") and Man Hing Industry Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. ("MH SZ"), which are indirectly wholly owned
subsidiaries of Man Sang International Limited (“MSIL").

1
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(a)

(b)
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2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reorganisation (Continued)
In preparation for listing of the Company's shares on the

Stock Exchange, the Group underwent the Reorganisation to

transfer the Business to the Company principally through the
following steps:

0]

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 30 April 2014, MSIL transferred the entire issued
share capital of Man Sang Innovations Limited to
Arcadia Global Holdings Limited (“Arcadia BVI").

On 30 April 2014, Man Sang HK transferred the entire
issued share capital of Arcadia HK to Arcadia Investment
Holdings Limited.

On 30 April 2014, Man Sang HK entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Man Sang HK assigned
the relevant assets and liabilities of the Business to Man
Sang Jewellery (Hong Kong) Limited (“MS Jewellery HK").

On 30 April 2014, MH SZ entered into an agreement
pursuant to which MH SZ assigned the relevant assets
and liabilities of the Business to Hui Bao Feng Jewellery
(Shenzhen) Limited (“"HBF Jewellery”).

On 30 April 2014, Man Sang Development Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of MSIL, transferred
the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Man Sang
Investments Limited to Man Sang International Holdings
Limited (“MS Holdings").

On 13 May 2014, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. A share was allotted and issued at par
and subsequently transferred to MSIL, and the Company
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of MSIL.

1

fRA ISR M ()

—REBMREHL(R)

(b) EAA(HE)
REBADRARBARBRZFA LW - &
SEETTEMR TBEB TSR
BREBERTARR :

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

R2014F4A30H © RABEE
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R20145F4H308 » REFEBE
EERE 2B BITRAE
FEBLREIERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MRS ERERM ()

=l
=)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Reorganisation (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

On 29 May 2014, MH SZ transferred the entire equity
interest in Kasiao (Shenzhen) Jewellery Company
Limited to HBF Jewellery.

On 17 June 2014, the Company subscribed the 1,500
issued share capital of MS Holdings and 1,000 issued
share capital of Arcadia BVI.

On 17 June 2014, MS Holding sand Arcadia BVI
repurchased the one share each issued to MSIL.

On 10 October 2014, 266,321,063 shares were issued
to MSIL by way of capitalising the amounts due from
the Group to MSIL of approximately HK$283.1 million.
The Capitalisation Issue was made for the purpose of
effecting the MSIL Distribution to MSIL.

On 16 October 2014, the Stock Exchange granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Company’s
share on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Consequently the condition for the special interim
dividend declared by MSIL on 26 September 2014 for
the purpose of the Reorganisation was satisfied by
the Capitalisation Issue and the MSIL Distribution has
accordingly been completed.

On 17 October 2014, the shares of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”). Following the Listing, the Company is no
longer a subsidiary of MSIL.

1
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(b) EAE)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of leasehold land and building,
which is carried at fair value.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation as described in note 1(b), the
Company became the holding company of the Group.

Immediately prior to the Reorganisation, the pearls and
jewellery business was held by MSIL and operated mainly
through three wholly owned subsidiaries of MSIL and pursuant
to the Reorganisation, the pearls and jewellery business was
transferred to and held by the Company in June 2014.

Subsidiaries

(i) Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

(iii)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemems (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HKS"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b)  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(0 all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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(RE I ImRMTE ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) HMEEEE 5 (%)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land and
building are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the year in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluation are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair valued at the consolidated balance
sheet date. Any revaluation increase is credit to the property
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credit to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in the net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives from the
date on which they are available for use and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease or
50 years

Leasehold improvements 25% —33%

Plant and machinery 20% - 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 25%

20% — 25%

Leasehold land and building

Motor vehicles

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual values and
useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other (loss)/gains — net” in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or assets not ready to
use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets

(i

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that thereis a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

2

fRA ISR M ()

EXETBERBER)

(9)

MHEE(E)

(iii)

L {E
AEERNBZHZEEAFEREER
BRER AWK EES—A
MBEECKRE - —RUBE
ER— MM EEEERNTS
MAZBERRE 2 —HAZ A
= EREGDMESDREZ
FEREE  BRBREH(EZ
FEREMH) UV BEES—A
MBEEZGARKREREZ
T AR SEHEFTE - TR
BERELRERSE -

RERE R Al B IR IR BN AR
A —HBEHABAERM R
o ERIEREENSSAE
3~ ERARRER SN ESE
THAMIBER - ARATBRS

STERD - flntRiE Rk EE
HE SRR 2 BN E -

S M B R R R L BR SR Bl
5 EBRERNREEREE
R EERERMERE 2
ERFARKRSRE(TBEERAR
EEZARREEBHR)RERZ
EHAE  REERAEE TN
HIRL - MER S BN ARA e
RATER - WEFIZEFRET
B AEt EEMREBRE IR
RRBRBENEE < REERM
X EERERT  AKEARE
SRTAQAEREEFAAE
EMEERE °



64

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited B4 BB ZRAR LD 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(RE I ImRMTE ()

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

(h) Offsetting financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

() Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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R ()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met. The Group bases its estimates
of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC based employees of the
Group participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group
and the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

(r)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
being operated by the local PRC government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute 10% to 15% of the average
basic salary to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance ("MPF Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$ 1,500 per month, effective from 1 June 2014. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Operating leases

Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentive received from the lessor), including upfront payment
made for land use right, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
these leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries
to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm'’s length terms, and the value of the premium agreed
corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation. No
receivable for the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on
experience of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees
is reported in the consolidated income statement within other
operating expenses.
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fRA ISR M ()

3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3 ERAFITREETZEBUBR
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HZEH|
@@  Amendments to existing standards and new interpretations @ F2015F4 1B ZFEBREAMR
effective for annual periods beginning 1 April 2015, relevant to HAREBZEFBIWIEAEFRRN
the Group's operations and adopted by the Group: IR B ERIFTEE R R aRE
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans BEeI R AERBAETE
FE199 (BETA)
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual improvements ERMIEHREER BEMKERE
to HKFRSs 2010-2012 (1B=ETA) AEH2010ER
cycle 20124F A HA
FE Rt
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual improvements BAMBHmEER BEUBRE
to HKFRSs 20112013 ({&E] ) AERDONFE
cycle 20135 1EHA
FEYE
The adoption of the above amendments to existing standards PR B 38 B RIFT RIS B R
and new interpretations did not have any material impact on B AREREAEE 2 A BRI EK

the preparation of the Group's financial statements. FRERZE -
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iR MR M (48)

3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

New standards and amendments to existing standards which
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2015 and have not been early adopted:

Amendment to
HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendment to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to
HKFRS 11
Amendment to

HKAS 1
Amendment to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
Amendment to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendment to
HKAS 27

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle

Financial instruments

Regulatory deferral accounts

Revenue from contracts with
customers

Leases

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its

associate or joint venture

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations
Disclosure initiative

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer plants

Equity method in separate financial
statements

Effective for

annual periods

beginning
on or after

1 January 2016

1 January 2018
1 January 2016
1 January 2018
1 January 2019
Effective date
not yet been

determined

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemems (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  New standards and amendments to existing standards which
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2015 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards and
amendments to existing standards and does not anticipate
that the adoption will result in any material impact on the
Group's results of operation and financial position.

The Group intends to adopt the above new standards and
amendments to existing standards when they become
effective.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The following are
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key areas of
judgement that may have a significant impact in determining the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.
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(RE I ImRMTE ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to market
conditions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its customers and prevailing market conditions.
Management reassesses the provision for impairment of trade
receivables at the balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimations at
the end of each reporting date to ensure inventories are shown at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowing (note 21),
cash and cash equivalents (note 19) and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and
may adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down
of bank borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowing or the
adjustment of dividend to shareholders.

The Group does not have a target gearing ratio, but has a policy of
maintaining a flexible financing structure so as to be able to take
advantage of new investment opportunities that may arise.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments, include market risk (foreign exchange risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
does not have written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the board of directors (the “Board”) meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure
to different risks arising from the use of financial instruments.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its
risk management. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Marketrisk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB") and United States dollar ("USS").
These currencies are not the functional currencies
of the Group entities to which these balances relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the movements in the exchange rates of these
different currencies against the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by closely monitoring the movement of
the foreign currency rates. Most of the Group's business
transactions are denominated in HKS, USS$ and RMB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations as long as the Hong
Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2016, if HKS had
weakened/strengthened by 3% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$30,000 (2015: HK$272,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-denominated receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, and payables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Marketrisk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets. The Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2016, if interest rates on cash held at banks
had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$402,000 (2015:
HK$179,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at banks.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group did
not expose to any interest rate risk related primarily
to variable rate borrowing (2015: HK$45,200,000).
Borrowing at variable rates exposes the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
deposit held at variable rates. It is the Group's policy to
keep the majority of borrowings at floating interest rate
50 as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section
of this note. The Group's interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rates
arising from the Group's deposits and borrowings.

At 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, interest payment on floating rate borrowing
would remain unchanged (2015: HK$113,000 higher/
lower).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
its cash in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the cash and cash equivalents
in the PRC were deposited in the major financial institutions
in the PRC with good credit rating. The Group categorises its
major counterparties into the following groups:

Group T — Top 4 banks in the PRC (China Construction
Bank, Bank of China, Agriculture Bank of China,
and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China);

Group2 — Other major listed banks in the PRC; and

Group3 — Regional banks in the PRC.

All cash at bank balances in the PRC as at 31 March 2016 and
2015 are placed with Group 1 institutions.

As at 31 March 2016, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 36% (2015: 44%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance.

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Before accepting any new customer, where available
at reasonable cost, the Group obtains credit report from
commercial information provider to assess the potential
customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits of customers are reviewed periodically. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
established credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

6

MHEREEERERBER(E)

(b)

FERR
B B 2 2R B M B 5K e LA
BEFARR S RERBE -

RRERFEFRREME - AREKR
SEERNEERERFERETIER
=R RARRIZ RIT AT o

R2016F 2015838318 - 2
ReRZERBESHFRRTFHARIE
Bl T B HBEHE - NEEHE
FEHFHFLEETIAER

AR — PEOART(PEERR
17~ PERTT - PEEZE
RIT R BETRAIRTT) -

ARl — PEEMETEEHRT:
&

ARI3 — PEMERT -

MR2016%F K& 2015%F3A318 » R 2
FrEIRITHEBIRESHITERA R #
o

MR201653A31H » AABPHAER
FEUT S Fh 4588 49369%(20154F : 44%) ©

AEBABLEFPHEFLERF
Ao MKARE  AREEREMAE
A EFR - tAXEEMIEHRERE
EERS  HEBERFPZERNRE
ERFPZEERE - ARAEHEHH
BEFZIEERSE - REEEERR -
AEBEERECDHFIEERE  FE
EHLEMEETERF - ERRIRE
TTERUCREETS -
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 HXKEMEEBERBEK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) »‘%iibi%ﬁﬂllﬁ
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETHNEEIAREERITEE Y

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s trade and
other payables and bank borrowing, based on undiscounted
cash flows (include interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

As at 31 March 2015, specifically, for bank borrowing which
contain a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the Group
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.

The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as
follows:

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows:

BTAHEIEER - ke ARERER
e (BIEERA WAL (MAT
BRI %) R B 2 R E 2 FIB A
O RAEETREREE L £ O
HE -

M20153 /318 - EEEmMs - EA
RITA] 2 REWBITEREFR EERIE
RZPITEEME - DWBETRREAR
SEA W ERBER & FRHE (B
BERTEEEGGERNEREFT)E
Ziﬁlﬁ/llhl-luj

AEEMBREZAQIHANT

BH A DM — REERIMEIRH

31 March 2016
2016 3 A31 B

On Lessthan Between1 Between2 More than
demand 1year and2years and5 years 5years Total
BRER SPR-F -—FEWF WMFERIEF SREE #et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERT THERT THET THET
Trade and FENER R
other payables Hoh e
SR - 23,133 - - - 23,133
- 23,133 - - - 23,133

31 March 2015
201593318
Between 1
and 2 years
—FEME WMEERLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

More than
5 years Total
ZAF st
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TATT

Between 2
and 5 years

On Less than

demand 1 year

REX
HKS$'000
THEx

PR—F
HK$'000
THET

Trade and other ENER R
payables H A Er
215 - 28024 - - - 28024
Bank borrowing RITEE 45,200 - - - - 45200
45,200 28,024 - - - 73,224




80

Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited REBKEZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR MR M (48)

6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowing with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in
the maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.

31 March 2016 201653 A31H

6 HMBEREEEFERBKGE)

REE T E (&)
TREINE AR ESEFRIEHZRIT
e B AR IR B TR 155 8 P 860 155 5 58 SRR
RIFELZEIMBE NI - RS RERE
EBRANNERFEZNEMNK -
I it FEEESR LA EIEI R D+
[MZERKEARNEE S - 5t Rk
AEEZFBHR - EFRBRITT
RABEITHERIBEERAKER - B
E0E - BFRRTEESREERH
BIE W EERRAHREE -

(c)

Maturity analysis - Bank Borrowing subject to
arepayment on demand clause based

on scheduled repayments
Ao - RBHEER B HRERA
BERBRERZRTEE
Between 1 Between 2
and 2years and 5 years
—FEWMFE WFEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT

Less than
1year
DPR—F
HKS$'000
AT

Total
et
HK$'000
THET

31 March 2015 201553 A31H

3,338 3,286 41,763 48,387

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.

ERABRBESEREHORRRAERR
2 ARtARIREE R Z A EREE -
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 HBERERERFERBKGE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Fair value estimation (d) AREME
The table below analyses the Group's assets carried at fair TREFAEAREZHERINTTAS
values as at 31 March 2015 by level of the inputs to valuation ABIBRZER - DT AREER201553
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are RA3BRARBEIRCEE - BHE#R
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as ABBEDOBEARBERBE=ARER
follows: I
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREEXBBEEETRMSZ®
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BORERAR)(FE1E) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level - BEERFIEZREN BE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either SBEZABRREE(BER) K
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived M (BNRB EBR) B AR (2
from prices) (level 2). E) e
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - WIHKIRRTEBEMSEBEMETE
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs) ZEBEEXBBEHAEERIAT
(level 3). B ARE) (F3E) -
Leasehold land and building are stated in the consolidated HETHMEEFNGEAEERBRIE
balance sheet at their revalued amount, which are classified BheWIE FHRSERARER
as level 2 for the purpose of measuring fair value. See note EMEEFE - ERZAREFEZ
15 for disclosure of the leasehold land and building that are HETHREFIIHE  S28ME
measured at fair value. Ii5ge

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

1B $2E £3E o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT TAT TAT

As at 31 March 2016 201653 H31H
Leasehold land and building HE Lt RESF = - 4 _

As at 31 March 2015 20153 H31H
Leasehold land and building HELtHREF = 95,000 = 95,000

There were no transfers between any levels during the year. FR - BHEI AR HAERE -
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7 REVENUE 7

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from
customers in respect of goods sold less returns and allowances.

The Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

A

WABRERLEEmE KM EREF 2508
RE KA o

FABRHERAKEWALT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Sales of pearls and jewellery PRKIRBIHE

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION 8

The Group’s management reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. They have
determined the operating segments based on these reports. The
Group is principally engaged in purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products. Information reported to the Group's management for
the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group's resources are integrated. Accordingly, the Group has
identified one operating segment — pearls and jewellery operating
segment, and segment disclosures are not presented.

The Group operates its business in Hong Kong and places other
than Hong Kong. The Group's revenue by geographical locations (as
determined by the area or country in which the customer is located)

is analysed as follows:

FERT TAT

210,019 270,709

7 ERE

REBERERMASE 2 NEBHRE ARHE
FRENEER - BERBEZEREETE
BoE - $EIIK%$I§H§&H§ Em
R - T - %5t EERIEDHE - AR
AEBZERE TUES @ OB ERET
HREMAAEEERE2RZERIARE
BEEBLEEE SR - AL - ZF%@EEE
E—AZENL-—BHRRKEEEDT - &
WEZY| S EPIFEER -

REBREBRBEBAINO T IEEER - 12
WA E (IREP A EXERERE)E S
ZASBWEDITIT

Europe BOM

North America e

Asian countries (excluding Hong Kong) TNERCTRERS)
Hong Kong B

Others oty

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
51,741 74,841
68,722 75218
58,707 76952
25,217 36,264
5,632 7434

210,019 270,709
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s
segment assets analysed by geographical location in which the assets
are located:

fRA ISR M ()

7 HPE R (&)

AN R B E I 2 IR B AN E D
HEEREEZ DM -

Hong Kong BB
PRC =8|

Revenue from the transactions with one individual customer
amounted to HK$30,597,000 was more than 10% of total revenue of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. This revenue
was attributable to North America region.

Revenue from the transactions with two individual customers
amounted to HK$30,321,000 and HK$28,525,000 were more than
10% of total revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2015. These revenues were attributable to North America
region and Europe region, respectively.

OTHER (LOSS)/GAINS - NET AND GAIN ON 9
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Other (loss)/gains - net

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT
309,071 317,582
30,232 40912
339,303 358494

HE2016F3A3NBEFBFEE - BH—FZ1E
BB P 25 2 WA 30,597,000 o5 AN & B
LU AT10%A _E o IBUR AR RIEFEMNHE
FFr{s ©

HE2015F3R31BIEHRERE - ERE
BRIERFER S 2 WA 5 F130,321,000% 7T &
28,525,000/ LI AN 5 B AU A 109% A _E 1t
B A D B 4b =M R BN & AT -

Hp (X)) s —FEMEE
8 2 R A

(a) Hfp(XZH) W — B8R

Exchange losses b 3 5 18

Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEYE  MENEKE
equipment 2 B8

Reversal of other payables H At fE (S FRIBHR

Others HAb

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT
(1,467) (767)
(6) (198)

- 1,161

76 617

(1,397) 813
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9 OTHER (LOSS)/GAINS - NET AND GAIN ON 9 Hu(XZH) W& FHEMHE
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) BB~ BRI (48 )
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMHEBAT

The Group entered into an agreement with the Chairman and
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group to dispose of
the entire equity interest of Man Sang International Holdings
Limited and Hong Kong Man Sang Investments Limited, both
being the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group, for a total
consideration of HK$55,665,000 which was determined with
reference to their financial positions as at 25 September 2015.

The disposal was completed on 25 September 2015.

REBMAAER EFERRLIERR
HEKBRLEAEBR 2 2EMWBA
AIREEBIERERARLEBR
EREERAAZEHERT  UH
201569 A 25 B Y BT #5 AR L BB TE BA
55,665,000/ L BMRIE o HER2015F
9A25H %MK °

Year ended
31 March 2016
HZ20165F
3AHLEE
HK$'000
FER

Net assets disposed of: FrE&EFE :
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B RS 101,351
Cash and bank balances & RIRITEER 517
Prepayments and other receivables Taf B B A R UK 73
Accruals and other payables TE R R H A FE ST 3R (9)
Bank borrowing RITEE (44,200)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFSHARE (12,858)
44,874
Legal and professional fees for disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZ ARENBEEER 848
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARRF 9,943
55,665

Satisfied by: PN IVESZNE
Cash Re 55,665
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9 OTHER (LOSS)/GAINS - NET AND GAIN ON o Hih(XW) W —FREMLE
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) M 2 FD%F ()
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) HEMBAT(E)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMNBRARZRERERESER
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: FERAZ PHTIT -
Year ended
31 March 2016
HZ20165F
3AMHLEE
HK$'000
FER
Cash consideration BeNE 55,665
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTH &R & RIRITFR (517)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEMBARMEAR S RERES
of the disposal of subsidiaries MAFEE 55,148
10 EXPENSES BY NATURE 10 BMESE X
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FAT
Costs of inventories FERAN 111,834 133,822
Employee benefit expenses EERMNFAX(BREESME)

(including directors’ emoluments) (note 11) (FffsE11) 62,599 61,560
Auditor's remuneration ZE AN & 1,270 1,180
Listing expenses sl 145 16,856
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRETE

(note 15) (PfFzE15) 4,042 5998
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) FERER 2 RIERE,(FE)

impairment of trade receivables (note 18) (FF5E18) 2,907 (81)
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) inventory BEFERERE(BED )

obsolescence (note 17) (FF5E17) 5,961 (4,647)
Operating lease rental on rented premises HiAYE & EHERS 11,543 10,526
Exhibition BE 5,268 5,668
Commission and customers’ designated payments {4 R EFEIEER R 1,440 2,588
Others Hih 22,118 21,520

Total cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses  $5ERAR « $HE KITIRF X 4258 229,127 254,990
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11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

11 EEEANRX(BEESEHE)

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TAT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEMET 59,371 56,433

Pension costs — defined contribution plans and BESHRA - ERERTIGE X
social security costs FEERER A 3,228 5127
62,599 61,560

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
HK$3,228,000 (2015: HKS$5,127,000), representing contributions
payable to the retirement benefits schemes by the Group.

Particulars of the five highest paid individual as are as follows:

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
for the year include 3 (2015: 3) directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out in note 32(a) below. The emoluments of the
remaining 2 (2015: 2) individual are as follows:

B ARG W R IR 2 485K 7K 3,228,0007% JT
(20154 : 5,127,000/ 7T ) $&5 7~ £= [ & [R] R AR
BRI 2 13K -

EERRERSFMALZMEFENT

TERESFMAL

FR - AEBREERFHALBRE=S
(2015%F : =ZH)ARRES - FEZHEH
KT IEE32(a) © EERRIHE (20155 « )
AT Z2MEmT :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT TAT

Salaries, wages and other benefits H4e - TEMEMIET 2,906 1,424

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BESHRA - ERAEIGE X
and social security costs e REERK AR 32 30
2,938 1,454

The number of the remaining individuals whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

WA THIH BB 2 AT AR -

Number of employees

BEAE

2016 2015

HK$500,000 — HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2015: Nil).

500,0007 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T = 2
1,000,00178 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T

2 —

BHZE2016F3A31ALEFE - AEEIWERA
hEERSHFWNAL(BIEES) L ERB
& - EBWSIEMASKA AR E EIF 2 52
Bk BEBL M (2 (20154F « ) -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FEHRAX
2016 2015
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FBTT
Current income tax: BUEARRS AR
Hong Kong profits tax EBFEH 1,285 3,274
PRC corporate income tax AR B TS A 233 754
1,518 4,028
(Over)/under-provision in prior year: BEFERETR(HBEEEE)
Hong Kong profits tax BBNED (923) 15
Deferred income tax: EIEFTISHR
Net (credit)/charge for current year REFZ(KR) FX FEE
(note 16) (KtzE16) (513) 1,950
82 5,993

Hong Kong profits tax
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.59%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in the
PRC are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at 25% (2015:
25%).

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed profits
The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to its
immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings generated
beginning on 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future.

ERNER
EBNEGBIRBENFE 2 Gt EEREF)
BB Z16.5% (20155 1 165%)51HF °

REEMER
RIEFERETRBRCEMBEARE  BOAIRER
185 - P RME A R EIEIE E25%(2015%F ¢
25%) BIRR B EAEH -

B2 RO IREF 2 BN
B20085F1 A1 BFE « BRIEBIBEBHBIEL T
LA A+ RBIFLERERBNEAREESE
B F R E R BIEINE IR A R DR S
TEBAR10%TBFOFL ©

AR RIHE I S I B A B 2 BB
B EMBRRTARIER A KD KA
A BRI EBAAGILE T BB AR 2 R4S
R B 2 RN ERRLERSHA

%o
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed profits
(Continued)

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax as follows:

12 FiSHim < (&)
BSIK K2 IREF 2 FE B ()

ANGF [ R IR A sz BRR TS B AR A 2 BBk N
™

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%)

FET FET
BT S AT (E51R) m (10,858) 16,049

RAHFT S R 2 16.5%
(2015%F : 165% )5t E 2 {18 (1,792) 2,648

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating  FAELfih Bl AE R 24E 2

in other jurisdictions MEAR TR Xz & (89) 279)
Tax effect of: Tiss 2
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose AR 2 2 927 4,966
Income not subject to tax BARBZ WA (1,794) (2,059)

Tax losses not recognised as deferred income

RARBERIELESHEE

tax assets THIEE R 3,597 284
(Oven)/under-provision in prior years BEFERETR (BEEEE) (923) 15
Others Hih 156 418
Income tax expense for the year REEERAZ 82 5993

13 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

13 SR(EE) BF

SREA(ER),/ BFITERAATRE R
(B518), i RIS 4 B 3497 2 BAR 2 AT
PIYEH -

2016 2015

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company (HK$'000) (F#T)

ARRIEREN (EBR),SE5 A

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the ~ ghat EEAEARRFIFTH 2

purpose of calculating basic earnings per share
(thousands)

B8 (T

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents per share)  GIREA (E518) /&7

(BRoE)

There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

(10,940) 10,056
269,819 266,321
(4.05) 3.78

HE2016F3831BILFE - BIEBEEHE
AL (20154F « &) o
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15

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

At 1 April 2014

Cost

Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Year ended 31 March 2015
QOpening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Increase in fair value
Eliminated on revaluation

(losing net book amount

At31March 2015

Cost

Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

REH
201454518
A

fihfE

Zithe

BZ2015F3831H LFE
ENREFE

e

e

g

DREEM

SR

EXEEFE
1201553 A31R
PR

ftfE
ZithE
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Leasehold
land and
building

BELH

kT
HKS'000
TAT

14

15

Leasehold
improvements
HE
BFEE
HKS'000
TEx

Hﬁ /%\

Plantand
machinery

L
HKS000
TAT

Fumniture,
fixtures and
equipment

i~
RERRE
HKS'000
TAT

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK000
TR

SRS fEFZMEE2016F3A31HILEE
IR R AR B (20154F « 4]) o

Total

%u‘ﬁ-
HK$'000
ThL

= 8439 2459 5936 4527 43501
91,000 = = = = 91,000
= (7.904) (21,086) (5,234) (3273) (37497)
91,000 535 3513 702 1254 97,004
91,000 535 3513 702 1254 97,004
= 1457 3,204 24 118 5003
= 7 = (228) (569) (804)
(2676) (469) (2,059) (363) (31) (5,99)
4000 = = = = 4000
2676 = = = = 2676
95,000 1516 4658 33 372 101,881
= 3,007 26974 129 487 31,763
95,000 = = = = 95,000
= (1491) (22316) (960) (115) (24882)
95,000 1516 4658 335 372 101,881
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y¥ - - WERKEE)
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand fixturesand Motor
building improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total

RELH ik Bl
LT RTEE  HERME  KERRR it EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TR TiEn TiEn

Year ended 31 March 2016 BZ2016E3031ALEE

Opening net book amount ENRETE 95,000 1,516 4,658 335 31 101,881
Additions RE - 3,814 34 199 63 4,400
Disposals e - - V) 23) (57) (82)
Disposal of subsidiaries ERBAR (98,000 (3,351) = = = (101,351)
Depreciation ik (1,414) (987) (1,200) (284) (157) (4,042)
Increase in fair value N 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Eliminated on revaluation Efnticsag! 1,414 - - - - 1,414
Exchange differences ERZE - (14) (7 (28) (26) (145)
Closing net book amount ERRETE - 978 3,703 199 195 5,075
At31 March 2016 #201653A31H

Cost R - 2,976 26,835 1,244 433 31,488
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE - (1,998) (23,132) (1,045) (238) (26,413)

- 978 3,703 199 195 5075
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Valuation of the Group’s leasehold land and building at 31 July
2015 was performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent firm of professional property valuer (the “Valuer”).
The valuation were arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions. This leasehold land and building was disposed of by
the Group during the current year. Further details are given in note 9.

Considering the short period of time since the last valuation, it is
considered that there was no significant change in the value of the
properties as at the date of disposal of subsidiaries compared with
the last valuation performed.

The recurring fair value measurements for the leasehold property is
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer. There were no transfer among level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

The valuation of the leasehold property was determined by using
the direct comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

fRA ISR M ()

15 Y% - BERRE(E)

AEEZHE L REFR2015F7H318
ZEEDHRBY EXYEGEMBERT
BRAR([fHEMDEMEREESE - It
EHEDN2RBAELEMSER S L (HER)
RFWHBFTEANELETF - WHE T
LMEFERATBEAR AN EEHE - 5F5 R
MI5E9 o

ZRI e EAMEERERYE - HEHRELRR
ZBAefER ERHRERAREREL

METHREF 2 EREARBEFEFAR
RERBFEUE - AEERREENERE
FREHERIREER  ALAEBR
B2EALBRIER - FA - B1E - F2E
K E3E 2 R T e K o

ME T BT 2 HETVIRERLEE (2
BE)EE - IR ELBMEZEED
WMEMBES IR ZRIELAR - 7
BAEEZRERGABBREFYTRE
1%
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16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16 EIEFTBH
The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets) KREEREZE2016F3 831 B ILFERER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year ERIEEHMAE(BE)RASHNM
ended 31 March 2016. N
Revaluation Accelerated Unrealised
of tax profitin
properties  depreciation inventories Total
RER
EftYE NEFERE FERF st
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAET
The Group AEHE
At 1 April 2014 201464 A1H 11430 354 (3,283) 8,501
Net (credit)/charge to consolidated GONVEEL 6t
income statement i (237) (161) 2,348 1950
Net charge to equity HMEER T 1,102 - - 1,102
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3 H31H 12,295 193 (935) 11,553
Net credit to consolidated SFAGRAMER
income statement SHE (165) (152) (196) (513)
Net charge to equity HE#ER SR8 728 - - 728
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRE (12,858) - - (12,858)
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H - | (1,131) (1,090
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BEEAAISEHITHEINBEREEREEER
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current WAMBREERE  BREMEHPRE—
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same BAEILES - AR SREMSHEER BF
fiscal authority. The following is the analysis of the deferred income RS - SR mm s CIBEEH D
taxation for financial reporting purposes: HIEUNNE
The Group
AEH
2016 2015
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET TFET
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFGREasE - 12,295
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTEREE (1,090) (742)

At end of the year RER (1,090) 11,553
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$21,277,000
(2015: HK$2,033,000) available for offsetting against future profits. No
deferred income tax asset has been recognised with respect to the
total of HK$21,277,000 (2015: HK$2,033,000) due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Tax losses of HK$21,277,000 (2015:
HK$2,033,000) have no expiry.

Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials RAR
Work in progress EE
Finished goods B

At end of the year RER

During the year, the Group made a provision for inventory
obsolescence of HK$5,961,000 (2015: reversal of provision for
inventory obsolescence of HK$4,647,000). Such provision/reversal
of provision has been included in cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement.

16

17

fRA ISR M ()

EIEFRSHL ()

R20165F3A31H » NEEHF21,277,0008 70
(2015%F : 2,033,000 7T ) 1] FA VB 85 A 2R 5%
Rz KB AFRIBEE - AREETBE ARG
AR - A ER A $£21,277,000% 7T (2015
F © 2,033,000 7T ) RIRIEFTS I EE ©
FRIEE1821,277,00058 7T (20154F ¢ 2,033,000
L)W EEmBE -

AR X A Il o B B 8 B 2 AR BB
BERMBRRTARIER A KD KA
Mo BAERETHBERR CARGEERER
A2 BRI B ERIEL PSR AE -

7H
The Group
AEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
14,582 16,309
3,146 7,752
84,763 75,776
102,491 99,837

RAFE  AEBEIRBHETERERE
5,961,0007% 7T (20154 : BHAF EREEE
[B] 54,647,000 7T ) ° B BAEE BEREE
BT ALREWER Z HER AR o
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 BRERRHEMERERER - BE
AND PREPAYMENTS RAENRE
The Group
rEH

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Trade receivables FEWE K 65,191 70,168
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables & : FEU S ZRE R E (11,543) (8,733)

Trade receivables — net B E R —F5 53,648 61,435

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EAbEUERSK « e RFANFRIA 13,068 18,113

&S 3K e L At FE MR BR K

Trade and other receivables, deposits and

prepayments Ze RIENFIE 66,716 79,548
Less: Non-current portion W FERENES S (3,534) (6,810)
Current portion meEs 63,182 72,738

The Group grants a credit period of 30 days to 120 days to its
customers. The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values as these financial assets, which are
measured at amortised cost, are expected to be received within
a short period of time, such that the impact of the time value of
money impact is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables due from individual customers are assessed based on the
credit history of its customers, their financial conditions and current
market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision is
recognised.

AEERAERPRHE30AE120H 2 F91E
EH o SRR R AR E (B
HARERE  REASZEREHENATE
B BEERR /N —BRIERRANKEZ - &
TRZKREEIZEITTERX -

REFBER  ~AEERKERNES 2EBESE
KAREIETIREBER P 2 EERE - BB
SN B ETTREHE o EIRHER A B B E
Y
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

fRA ISR M ()

18 BRERKEMEWRERNR - £E

RBARIEE)

RERE 7 R E R e EL A e YRR < AR TE B
ATHIEEEHE -

Renminbi AR
United States dollar E7T
Hong Kong dollar BIT
Others Efth

The Group has provided fully for all receivables where recovery of
the amounts is remote, unless the Group has determined that such
balances are not recoverable, in which case the impairment loss
is directly written off against the corresponding trade receivables.
Based on past experience and the Group’s assessment, management
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of the
remaining balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality of such receivables and the balances are considered
fully recoverable.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

The Group

rEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THExT FET
4,162 3,809
50,071 58,273
12,457 17,466
26 -
66,716 79,548

ZRER 8 /5 T I3 1 AR B2 PR AR SR
E2HER  RIFAEERRBUEFEHTA
YWEl - FLERT - REEES B K EAE
FEUE TR - IRIBBE LR R ARE 2 ¥
ft - BREREHA % FERIE LR ER
B REARZEREEREEERLEEX

At beginning of the year REH]

Provision for/(reversal of provision for) impairment  JE({EE 2 &4 (@)
losses

Amounts written off as uncollectible

At end of the year RER

The provision for/(reversal of provision for) impairment losses on
trade receivables have been included in ‘administrative expenses’
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off, when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

AEERE MMHE R

The Group
EEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THExT FET
8,733 13,765
2,907 81)
(97) (4,951)
11,543 8,733

R E R 2 REEEEE  (BE)ARE
WK Z [T ] o BT KR mEESN
Re  FFAERKRZ SR RO -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$65,191,000 (2015: HK$70,168,000) and their ageing
analysis based on due date is as follows:

BURERREERER - B
3L RAC )

FTAREE R E R L E M EUER T~ &
W& F A65,191,00078 7T (20154F ¢ 70,168,000
BIT) o WERFIBEBREA 2R DT
™

Not past due f260 Hf

1 to 60 days past due # A1 Z=60H
61 to 120 days past due A HA612=120H
More than 120 days past due B HAERR 1208

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$40,393,000 (2015:
HK$42,776,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality of these receivables and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

The Group
A5

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
13,255 18,659
16,094 18,387
5,348 8,546
30,494 24,576
65,191 70,168

REHATIARRIE 2 RUSRFOS & % 2 I 1
REFCHEZ TREP

201693 4318 + FEURE 5840,393,0007 7T
(20154F : 42,776,000 7T ) & B B HA{B K5
B WERKERELZBYRFEH M
1S HR I EHE R IB SR REER - RIBBEL
% BEEMREOANLEAREDRER
#H RAAZFEWEREEERUWEER
""""" BE)  HZSEHDER AR 2D - 1t
ERWERZBRBEOITIT -

1 to 60 days past due # A1 Z=60H
61 to 120 days past due A H612=120H
More than 120 days past due B HAERR 1208

The Group
AL%H

2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THExT FAET
16,094 18,387
5,255 8,107
19,044 16,282

40,393 42,776
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 BIWERRHEMEBEWER » &E
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) R Z0E ()
As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$11,543,000 (2015: 7201653 A31H » EULE 11,543,000/ 7T
HK$8,733,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually (20154F : 8,733,000/87L) BEREKREFTIE
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in Bty o [ERIBEZ FEWEREZ X EHENTER
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of ZINEERBREER - EREWERN
these receivables is as follows: RECOMTLT -
The Group
A%H
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
61 to 120 days past due #HI61 21208 93 439
More than 120 days past due A EARE120H 11,450 8,294
11,543 8,733
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 REREZERRE
The Group
AEH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Bank balances and cash RITHEBENRIRE 163,931 70,186
Time deposits TEHFER - 6,300

163,931 76,486
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and cash

equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

19 RERFERE(H)

RehERReZRAEEREQALEREE -
RERERBREIATIIEEE :

Renminbi ARK
United States dollar e
Hong Kong dollar BIT
Others oty

The periods of time deposits approximately range from 1 month to 2
months and they carry interest at short-term deposit rates of below
1% (2015: below 1%).

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group
rEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET BT
7,130 15,251
38,204 49,612
114,458 8,236
4,139 3,387
163,931 76,486

T FEFHABNTFO—EAERER @ Wik
EAE (20159 BN E) 2 R HATF 3R =
FTE e

BAANRBEEHE < A8 IR INEW # 1t F
DSNEFHEZ RITHEBNIIRSELPE - 2
TR BB 5L ONE & il 8 2 AEREAR A &
A

20 BENERRHEMEMNIERR

The Group
rEH

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Trade payables &R 8,648 4216
Accrued payroll and employee benefits FEET N N R & 18 A 7,471 12,688
Other accruals and other payables HifETE B R E M EMERR 7,819 12,482

23,938 29,386
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 20 BENERRHEMENSRNR(E)
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as ERNEFREEZRRZREROTNOT
follows:

The Group

AEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FAT
0 to 60 days 0%60H 4,019 4216
61 to 120 days 6121208 1,285 -
More than 120 days HBi@1208 3,344 _
8,648 4216

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to ENERREMENER CREEEE AR
their fair values, and are denominated in the following currencies: BiEE - WA T EEFE :
The Group

rEH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHER FAT
Renminbi AREE 6,601 8,196
United States dollar e 5,097 6,376
Hong Kong dollar BT 12,202 14,789
Others Hi 38 25

23,938 29,386
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21 BANKBORROWING

Current B ER
Bank borrowing RITEE

The maturity of the bank borrowing with reference to the schedule
of repayment set out in the loan agreement regardless of repayment

on demand clause is as follows:

Within 1 year —F A
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMEN
Between 2 and 5 years MEERFA

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's bank borrowing of HK$45,200,000
was secured by the Group's leasehold land and building located
in Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$95,000,000, and the
Company's corporate guarantee. Such borrowing was disposed of as
part of the disposal of subsidiaries.

As at 31 March 2015, the bank borrowing was classified as current
liabilities because the related loan agreement contains a repayment
on demand clause which gives the lender the unconditional right
to call the loan at any time. This bank borrowing would mature in
December 2018.

The carrying amount of bank borrowing approximated to its fair
value. The bank borrowing was carried at HIBOR+1.9% during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

21

RITIEE

The Group
A5
2016 2015
HK$'000
FET

HK$’000
TET

AR I & R hp ok P SR SRR ) 1 e R 5K
BERIEK - RITEREZZHMAMT

The Group
A EE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET
= 2,400
= 2,400
= 40,400
= 45,200
FR2015F3 A318 » A& E A 245,200,000

T0.2 SRITE B DA £ B BR T & /495,000,000
B2 ESHE L MBFRNARR Z0E
EREER - WEEEALEWBARER
—BHHE -

R2015F3A318 @ RITEELEARDE
& RAAEBER R SEREERE
b ﬁit%%?m/\ﬁﬂi{m#’fiéﬂTBﬁf%%ﬂifé”ﬁ
B o WIARITEE RN 201812 A 23

BITEEZRMELEEQAAERE - IR
2015FF3 310 @ RITEEREBHEITRAZE
FEINOEFHEEFER -
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fRA ISR M ()

@S

Number of Share
shares capital
R EE BR 2
2016 L)
HKS$
BT
Authorised: ETE
At 13 May 2014 (date of incorporation) (Note a)  #201445 8 13H
(sEfA Sz B 8) (KisEa) 380,000 380,000
Increase in authorised share capital and HEONE B RS R AR AR D
subdivision of shares (Note b) (P 5ED) 999,620,000 9,620,000
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 F2015K%20165F3 A31H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 13 May 2014 (date of incorporation) (Note a) 2014458 13H
(FEfRASZ B ER) (BisEa) 1 1
Subdivision of shares (Note b) AR (P sED) 99 =
Capitalisation issue (Note c) &AM BT (HMisEc) 266,321,063 2,663,211
At 31 March 2015 F2015F3 A31H 266,321,163 2,663,211
Issue of placing shares (Note d) BATREERR D (MiaEd) 53,200,000 532,000
At 31 March 2016 201653 A31H 319,521,163 3,195,212
As at 31 March 2015 and 2016, the authorised ordinary shares of the R201582016F3 318 * ARBDAE LA

Company have par value of HK$0.01 each.
Note:

(@) The Company was incorporated on 13 May 2014. As at the date of incorporation,
the Company had an authorised share capital of HK$380,000, divided into
380,000 shares of HK$1.00 each. On the same date, one share was issued for
cash at par to the initial subscriber.

(b) On 26 September 2014, pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
shareholder of the Company, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 and each issued and unissued
shares of HK$1.00 each was sub-divided into 100 shares of HK$0.01 each.
Immediately thereafter, the authorised share capital of the Company comprised
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 100 shares were in issue.

(c) On 10 October 2014, an amount of approximately HK$283.1 million was
capitalised into 266,321,063 shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue resulting in a share premium of approximately HK$280.5
million.

Pz BIRE{ER0.01/ETT ©
B

(a) AAFR2014Fs B13BFMA o ReEflk
LA ARBZIEERARR3800008TT 0 DR
380,000/ B AR EIE 1.00/8 T 2k fh - BH » —i%
A1 BIREEETT T VA RE A REUR S ©

(b) MR20145F9A 268 « IREBEAARK—REMNEE
RFER - AR RNEE MR 380,000/ TG N E
10,000,000 7T + T EBREE1.00ETTHERE
BT RAR BT #4015 100 I & A% T (B 0.01 745
TR - BEEE®E - NABMEERNBRE
1,000,000000 % B R EE0O1 B T2 R - E
100BRIRID B 84T ©

(© 720148104108 + 49283,100,00078 TTAR IR & A
{b317 2 BT A 7K 5266,321,063 B8 B AL E E0.01
BT IR - BB £9280,500,000/8 7T ©
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22

23

24

MRS ERERM ()

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 RAE(E&)
Note: (Continued) MIRE - (88)
(d) On 22 February 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with the (@) HR2016F 2820 ARREARERERET

placing agents in relation to the placing for an aggregate of 53,200,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at the placing price of HK$1.05 per
share (the "Placing Shares”). On 8 March 2016, the Placing Shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a placing price of HK$1.05 per share to certain
investors for aggregate placing proceeds totalling HK$55,860,000, of which
HK$532,000 were credited to share capital and HK$55,328,000 were credited to
share premium. Transaction costs in relation to the placing of HK$1,495,000 were
debited to share premium. These shares represented approximately 16.65% of
the enlarged issued share capital of the Company as at the date of placing.

REHZE  RERESEBE 105k EE K
53,200,0008% & AR E{E0.01 78 7T 2 AN A B & i A% A%
D (TEEERD ) - R2016F3A8H » RARIAF
R 1. 05T 2 B ERE T IREEEITER
EEAE0O T ZEERD - REEFREAFE
#555,860,0007T + E A B #5532,000 7T AR A -
A %55,328,0007C B ARD S B - BRARLE 2
SRS 151,495,000 7T I AR 7R (B - 2 E R
ERMNNELE B EL AN D AEEIEARE BITIRAL
16.65% ©

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 23 B R A
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT T
Finance income B s W e
Interest income on short-term bank deposits EHIRIT IR SR 2 T B A 123 517
Finance cost EUR DN
Interest expenses on bank borrowing RITEE 2 FERAX (419) (1,000)
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 24 BEREIE
The Group

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT TAET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided B 5T 4B RIALR A BIF5 R & B s
for in the consolidated financial statements: ZERFRRL
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WERRE

385 1,423
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had outstanding commitments
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Operating leases which expire:

25

fRA ISR M ()

REHERH

REBERAEBEA

R20165F3A31H - AEEZER T3 8HE
MZ NI RSE G EHERARREREE AT
REEPENT -

The Group
rEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET

FTERT

LR ETEIA TR R -

Within one year —F R 12,291 10,991
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFAT(BREEEMNT) 908 10,798
13,199 21,789

The Group leases as offices and factories under non-cancellable
operating lease commitments. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one to five years and rentals are fixed during the relevant
lease period.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company issued corporate guarantees
to a bankin respect of general banking facilities granted to its
subsidiaries. To the extent of such banking facilities, the borrowing
of HK$45,200,000 was drawn by one of its subsidiaries, as detailed in
note 21 of these financial statements. Such borrowing was disposed
of as part of the disposal of subsidiaries (note 9).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had maximum exposure on the
guarantee of HK$45,200,000. The Directors are of the view that the

fair value of such guarantee was not significant.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had no other
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no financial guarantee.

26

REBAKEHEAREHEERAERHE °
BOZEFHFHA—20F  MESRE
FEBREETE

B2

R2015F38318 » ARAAENBARE
Bz —MBITRER —KBITIEH D EE
R ERBEEBITHREMS - EP RSB
N BB REVE B 4520000058 7T - HBER
ZEHIEmARME2 o WEED AL ENE
RREAFP M HE (FIEF9) °

R2015F3A31H » AREBFEREE 2 &
= B A45,200,00055 70 - EER A B
BERZARBILTERK °

B EXFTHEEIN - ANEERARARR2015
FIANATEEMEANABE -

R201693 8318 » A% B W AT (] B 75
R o
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27

28

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 27 FEAERSH
()  During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has ()  BIER2016F3A831HFE @ AEHER

reclassified HK$3,814,000 of prepayment to property, plant
and equipment upon the completion of renovation of the
leasehold improvements.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group sold (i)
property, plant and equipment at a consideration of
HK$585,000 to a related party which was settled by offsetting
an equivalent amount due by the Group to the related party.

(i)  On 10 October 2014, the Company allotted and issued (iii)
266,321,063 shares to MSIL by way of capitalising the amount
due from the Group to MSIL of approximately HK$283.1

THEEF RS T 13,814,000 7T
ZHENREESFHHEAYE BEL

MR2015F3A3NAFE - AEERE—H
BEANTHEME  BEREE K
{8 458500078 70 » Jh LA S5 AN £E [ g
NzBEAT 2 SEFIBEFAER -

MR2014%F 108108 » KA FBEB
BAEBEMNREBRBR ZHELD
283,100,000 BT E AR - MR AEE

million. PRER %% ;2 3577266,321,0630X AR 15 ©
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 BAEALRS
(a) Key management compensation (a) TEEBAEZFHFM
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT FiBT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TEREMER 6,310 6,986
Pension costs — defined contribution BEZESKA —ERMERETE &
plans and social security costs HEREKAR 66 57

6,376 7,043
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(b) The Group entered into the following material related party
transactions. These transactions are made of terms mutually

agreed by the related parties.

Related party relationship
BEALTER

Entities which is significantly influenced by a
key management personnel of the Company

ARA—HZTBEEEAR
BREEATENIZER

Key management personnel of the Company

ARB—BREIBEEEAER

Nature of transaction

REME

fRA ISR M ()

BEEALRS (&)

(b) FEBMETATERFEALRS -
WERXZIIREZ 2 EEATERR

TE ZARFRRTAL

2015
HK$'000
THT

2016
HK$’000
TERT

Reimbursement of rental charges

paid on behalf
WER Tz HE

Rental expenses

MERX

Recharge of administrative expenses

EACIPASY: 53

Consideration received from

disposal of subsidiaries

HEHMB R RIWRIHKE

Amounts due from/(to) related parties are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there were no other significant related party transactions.

2,965 2,847
1,331 2,111
773 4477
55,665 =

A (Re) BEE A T FRIA R EIE
# RS BARELRER -

B a M RRMEESN
MEABEALRS °

.
WEE
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29 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 FRERERERME
CASH FLOWS
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals RiraReRERT - HEME - BERK
BAREIERR

of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLEFE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET BT
Net book value (note 15) AR SRR (FIEE15) 82 804
Amount due from a related company FEARAE A B FIE - (585)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BE R
equipment (note 9) B gL (6) (198)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and ﬁ%%% Jf‘ﬁ}%&
equipment RABFTS T 76 21
30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 30 FEMBLT
Place of establishment/  Nominal value Percentage of
principal place of of issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities
WEARER Ruhs/ TELEHE BRORAAMEFEE rEEEGESZEIL  FEEE
Directly Indirectly
B 53
Arcadia Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Trading of jewellery products
EERHARAA] B8 T @AR50000078 T EEREEM
Man Sang Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Trading of pearl products
(Hong Kong) Limited
REKE (FB)ERAA B EERIAT EEVHEM
Hui Bao Feng Jewellery PRC Registered capital - 100%  Purchasing and processing of
(Shenzhen) Limited 1JS$2,000,000 pearls and assembling of
pearl jewellery
EBLRE (R BRAR G A& AR2,000000% 7T RERNIDH KSR
YIHE
The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort by ETHBARIEE HEXETE  HEXH
the management of the Company in translating their Chinese names BOAARERERGAB NBEP LR

as they do not have official English names. BEPIS -
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 31 AP RIZEEEBRNLNBEEET
OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company AAREEAER

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016
HK$'000
FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 11,198 11,210
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE S R H A pE IR IE 1,310 330
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHT B A B FIE 254,871 274,429
Cash and cash equivalents BERERRS 44,451 =
300,632 274,759
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FETARFK 16 2,530
Amounts due to subsidiaries VRN ENGIE ¢ > 18,212
16 20,742
Net current assets RBEEFRE 300,616 254,017
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERABAERE 311,814 265,227
Net assets EEFE 311,814 265,227
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders 7~ 5] B} R FE{L #E 25
of the Company
Share capital ¥ 3,195 2,663
Reserves (B4 (@) 308,619 262,564
Total equity R 311,814 265,227
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARRIBEEBBEREN2016F6 H27HEE
Directors on 27 June 2016 and was signed on its behalf. EeAETHUTESRAEREZ -
Cheng Chung Hing Yan Sau Man, Amy
B4 mEF
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Executive Director

FERIPTEF HITEF
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 31 RARIZEEEGRRABED
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company MisE(a) : ANDBIREGE
Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

R3S E AitE8 Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT FHAT

At 13 May 2014 (date of incorporation) 72014558130 (EMAKZ B H) = = -

Capitalisation issue (note 22) B BT (Mi5E22) 280,483 = 280,483

Loss for the period NEAEIE - (17,919) (17,919

At 31 March 2015 7201563 A31H 280,483 (17,919) 262,564

Issue of placing shares, net of share issue expenses ~ ZE1TECERAD » HBRAD TR 53,833 = 53,833

Loss for the year KEFEE - (7,778) (7,778)

At 31 March 2016 R2016F3H31H 334,316 (25,697) 308,619
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 32 EEfaRkER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHAZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is EEFRITHRAE 2HE7FHIT -

set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2016: B22016F3A31HLEFE ¢
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in M RBEE(TwmAal BN E L F]
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company or its R CREEN TEESLEEEN
subsidiary undertaking AEE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

inrespect of

director's other

Remunerations servicesin

Employer's paid or connect with

contribution receivable the management

Estimated toa inrespect  of the affairs of

moneyvalue retirement of accepting  the company or

Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas itssubsidiary

Name of director Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director  undertakings

HERER

LONES

EMEARES

REEHEHR BEE  ZESRMEE

RftRiEz BTN BEEMNE  BREEke
g e BERA  GRERE ARENER 5 vk | AfthE &5t
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tin Fin Tin TiEn Tin Tén  TiEn

Executive Directors &S
Ms.Yan SauMen, Amy (notea)  BAE/MA(FzEa)

(Chief Executive Officer) (frlied) - 1,800 - - - 18 = o 1,818
Mr.Chen Zhi Wei otet) B (564 (Hif3ib) = 1,000 100 : - 18 = = 1,118

Non-ExecutiveDirector ~ #E{7EE
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing SRS E(ER)
(Chaimar) (note:) (Prska) - 1,750 - > 860 12 - - 262

IndependentNon-Executive 41T

Directors 3
MrFungYatSang noted) B4t (Rfskc) 20 _ s = - - - - 20
Mr Look Andrew (ote) ~ BERSE £ (k) 20 d 2 3 - - - - Py
M Tsui FrancisKing Chung S 4

(note ) (M) 20 - - - - - - - 00

660 4,550 100 - 860 48 - - 6,218
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015:
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking

Discretionary
Name of director Salary bonuses

Executive Directors YiTES
Ms.Yan SauMen, Amy(noted)  BAE/MA(Ffzka)

32 EERN=mRER(E)

(a) EERTHARME(HE)

BZ2015F3A31BLEE :
HEREE(TmANGIEN B LA
%ﬁ)ZiﬁﬁB NFPEFHLEZEK

Remunerations

toa

Tetirement

of other benefit
benefits scheme

(Chief Executive Officer) ﬂﬁ%ﬂ ) - 1710 1400 - 17 - - 317
Mr.ChenZhi Vel otet) BSR4 (Hizh) - 97 23 - 18 - - 1218
Non-Executive Director ~ %31783
Mr.Cheng Chung Hing AR

(Chairman) (rotea) (iEz) - 1697 - 889 10 - - 25%
IndependentNon-Executive B FHTEE

Directors
MrFung Yt Sang (noted) B jkek 5645 (Bt kc) 110 - - - - - - - 110
Mr.LookAndrew noted) — EERR £ (Bifskc) 110 - - - - - - - 110
M Teui Francis King Chung 2% 564 (B k)

(noted) 110 - - - - - - - 110

330 4344 1663 - 889 45 - - 7271
Notes: Bi%E -
@ Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing were appointed as @) T /)NE R EPVAE St £ 5201445 A
directors on 13 May 2014 BRAEZERES -

Mr. Chen Zhi Wei was appointed as a director on 17 June 2014. Mr. Chen
resigned as a director on 11 April 2016.

Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui, Francis King Chung
were appointed as independent non-executive directors on 26
September 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Chairman agreed to waive
his emoluments of HK$1,250,000 voluntarily (2015: Nil).

Other benefits include leave pay and insurance premium. Other benefits
consist of approximate ratable value and rent of the properties for
accommodation and other related expenses.

(b) HELER2014F6 A 17BEZT A
§$ o FRIEAEN2016F4 A1 BEHIE

© IBRERE BEREEREYPIEE
ggm@ﬁ 26 B EZR T BB IEANIT

d  EHE206F383BULFEE KR
E B REREE$1,250,0005 7T (2015
Fm|E) o

© EEMemaHBRBRRRESE -
HipmMBEREMEZBORRE
fAAEREE R EMIARES -
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
or controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).

33 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 April 2016, Mr. Chen Zhi Wei has tendered his resignation as
an executive director but has remained as a procurement manager
of the Group. Mr. Leung Alex has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company on the same date.

fRA ISR M ()

32. EERERAER (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EE 2 RAENERBER

MBFRE AR EE F WD SRR ENE
RN S RER AR (20154F « ]) -

MERHEEREMEAE=H
RHZRE
REZE2016F3831BIEFE » KA A
WEGLEREESREMAERE=
FEARE (20154 « ) o

BRNLES EEZEHE
ErRAEEEAXTZAZE
o EERREMRZ 2ER

REZE2016F3A31BIEFE » KA A
AR AEE ZH B A R BEERT LA
B EBEFXENEERBEER
BRXEmAZER EERREMRH
ZHE(2015% « 4) o

EERRE  RELENH
BEAER

BERE T ERRATEREI - FLEH
RAFERN - ARARWESRTEAS
MAEBZEBMARBZESTEE
REEEEPBEEARSZEER
5 THESEHI(2015%F « £E) ©

33 £EHRSEE

R2016F48118 @ RERLEFTHNITE
ZEMAREBRZHELE - NR—H @ 2
T AL EZEBARTNITES -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBERE

RESULTS

ES

For the year ended 31 March

BE3A3MALEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TERT T FHETT T T
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(MizEa) (BtzEa) (BizEp) (FizEb) (BI=ED)
Revenue A 210,019 270,709 268473 261411 300,024
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT SRiAT (E5) A (10,858) 16,049 32,024 16,398 47,902
Income tax expense FriefimY (82) (5,993) (2,428) (2,121) (4,966)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders 7 /A &I IR ER &
of the Company for the year IEE(BER),%h (10,940) 10,056 29,596 14,277 42,936
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
MA3A31A
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FEx THET T FHET T
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(HizFa) (EZ) (PBf=EDb) (BizED) (BizEDb)
Total assets BEE 339,303 358,494 492,120 747,647 638,836
Total liabilities BEEE 25,646 90,896 93,259 383,081 195,067
Equity attributable to equity holders KA BIRERE
of the Company G 313,657 267,598 398,861 364,566 443,769
Notes: FfsE -
@) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements in the ©) B8R i8R B R FRAT B BTIE®REK ©

annual report.

(b) The financial figures were extracted from the Listing Document dated 30 September
2014.

()  BEEFIEEE 201459 A30 ARER XX F -
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